
“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

229 MAIN STREET, CONWAY, SC 29526 
MONDAY, AUGUST 5, 2024 - 4:00 PM 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Rev. Robert Bannan, Kingston Presbyterian

III. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-05 (A) to annex approximately 127 acres of
property located on John Doctor Road and Highway 905 (PIN 339-00-00-0013), and 
rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture (CFA) district, Residential, 
no mobile homes allowed (SF40) district, and Residential, no mobile homes allowed 
(SF20) district to the City of Conway Low-Density Residential (R) district.  

B. Final Reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (B), an ordinance to adjust the tax millage rate 
in the FY 24-25 budget.  

C. Final Reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C), an ordinance granting a water and sewer 
utility easement to 1707 9th Avenue (PIN 368-02-02-0028) across property of the City of 
Conway (PIN 368-02-02-0036) running from Wright Blvd to 1707 9th Avenue. 

D. Approval of the Purchase of a Wheel Loader and Excavator for the Public Works 
Department (Budgeted) 

E. Approval of a Special Event – Halloween Golf Cart & CCU Homecoming Parade – 
October 19, 2024 

F. Approval of Purchase of Vehicles for Police Department (budgeted) 

G. Approval of Purchase of Water Meters for Public Utilities (budgeted) 

H. Approval of Purchase of a Vehicle for IT Department (budgeted) 

I. Resolution Accepting Dedication of Roadways & Drainage System in the Wild Wing, 
Phase 5A Subdivision (Barrington Way, Brook Park Place, and Hardwood Court) 

1



“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 

J. Approval of July 15, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 

IV. PUBLIC INPUT

V. SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

Presentation of Longevity Awards – July 2024 – 5 Years:  William “Ashley” Smith, 
Recreation; 5 Years: Robert DeGiovine, Public Utilities; 5 Years: Jarred Hucks, Public 
Utilities; 10 Years: Matthew “Garth” Holt, Police; 10 Years: Ancil “Monty” Martin, 
Hospitality & Beautification; 10 Years: Bryson Gillig, Hospitality & Beautification; 10 Years: 
Michael Greene, Recreation; 10 Years: James Floro, Recreation; 20 Years: Lynn Smith, 
Human Resources; 20 Years: Bryan Williams, Recreation 

VI. FIRST READING

A. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (A) to annex approximately 5 acres of
property located at 2493 East Highway 501 (PIN 383-14-02-0002), and rezone from the 
Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Light Industrial (LI) 
district. (Hucks) 

B. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (B) to annex approximately 0.8 acres of 
property located at 420 Maplewood Circle (PIN 324-06-04-0013), and rezone from the 
Horry County Residential District (SF40), no mobile homes allowed to the City of Conway 
Low/Medium Residential (R-1) District. (Hucks) 

C. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (C) to annex approximately 1.02 acres of 
property located at 4221 Siwel Road (PIN 295-16-01-0010), and rezone from the Horry 
County Commercial Forest Agriculture district (CFA) to the City of Conway Low/Medium 
Residential (R-1) District. (Hucks) 

D. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (D) to annex approximately 0.34 acres of 
property located at 5205 Columbia Street (PIN 383-08-02-0045), and rezone from the 
Horry County Residential District (SF10), no mobile homes allowed to the City of Conway 
Low/Medium Residential (R-1) District. (Hucks) 

E. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (E), amending Article 4 – Use Tables and 
Article 5 – Specific Use Regulations, of the City of Conway Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO), regarding mobile car wash / detailing facilities and/or businesses. 
(Hucks) 

F. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (F), amending Article 2 – Definitions, Article 
5 – Specific Use Regulations, and Article 6 – Design Standards, of the City of Conway 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), regarding requirements for corner lots and lots 
with double frontage. (Hucks) 

2



“I pledge to build a stronger and more prosperous community by advocating for civil 
engagement, respecting others and their viewpoints, and finding solutions for the betterment of 
my city.” 

G. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (G), amending Article 11 – Signage and 
Article 15 – Enforcement, of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), 
regarding signs placed on public property and/or within public rights-of-way, as well as 
violations of the UDO and penalties for such violations. (Hucks) 

H. First Reading of Ordinance #2024-08-19 (H), to close and abandon an unimproved     25-
ft Private Alley and a 35-ft Private Right of Way (PIN 338-09-02-0014, 338-09-02-0011, 
338-09-02-0010, 338-09-02-0009, 338-09-02-0008 and 338-09-02-0007). (Hucks) 

VII. CONSIDERATION

A. Consideration of Bid for Public Works Annual Asphalt Contract (Harrelson)

B. Consideration of a Special Event – Rivertown Reindeer Run – December 7, 2024 (Rogers)

VIII. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

IX. COUNCIL INPUT

X. WORKSHOP 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. Discussion Incident to the Employment of a Public Utilities Employee [pursuant to SC
Code §3-4-70 (A) (1)]. 

B. Discussion Relative to Contractual Services [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70 (A) (2)]. 

XII. RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION

XIII. POSSIBLE ACTION ON MATTERS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION

XIV. ADJOURNMENT

Any citizen of the municipality may make an appearance before City Council concerning any municipal matter with 
the exception of personnel matters.  Persons desiring to speak must notify the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  However, if you are speaking regarding a public hearing item, then you would do so during that time 
on the agenda.  Please address Council from the podium stating your name, address, and the subject you would like 
to discuss.  The public may also access the meeting at https://www.conwaysc.gov/ under the “Latest Events” tab on 
the home page.  If you are unable to attend and would like to voice your concerns or comments regarding a request, 
please call the City Hall at 843-248-1760 or email ashelley@conwaysc.gov to be received prior to 12:00 noon on 
August 5, 2024.  To ensure proper recording of public comments left on the City’s voicemail, callers are urged to 
clearly pronounce their names and addresses, preferably providing spelling for both. 

3

https://www.conwaysc.gov/
mailto:ashelley@conwaysc.gov


DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024           
ITEM: III.A. 

ISSUE: 
Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-05 (A) to annex approximately 127 acres of property 
located on John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905 (PIN 339-00-00-0013), and rezone from the Horry County 
Commercial Forest Agriculture (CFA) district, Horry County Residential, no mobile homes allowed 
(SF40) district and the Horry County Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF20) district to the City 
of Conway Low-Density Residential (R) district.  

BACKGROUND: 
In June 2024, the applicant submitted an annexation and rezoning application for the subject property, 
located on John Doctor Rd and Hwy 905. The property is currently vacant. The applicant is seeking to 
annex the property for residential development, under the city’s default zoning district of ‘R’ – Low-
Density Residential, which requires a minimum lot size of 10,000 sq. ft. Because the property is 
contiguous to property already in the city limits, before any development could occur, the applicants 
would be required to request annexation.  

Per Section 3.2.17 of the UDO, the intent of the “R” district is to provide for the preservation and 
expansion of areas for low-density, detached single-family residential development in the City of 
Conway. The district shall present a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable 
neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding 
areas.  

CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan also identifies the entire parcel as Low-Density 
Residential. 

Surrounding properties – zoning and uses: 

There are several zoning districts within the immediate area of the subject property; most of which are 
county zoning districts. The subject property is split-zoned three (3) different zoning districts: CFA, 
SF40 and SF20; however, a majority is zoned CFA.  

• CFA permits site built or manufactured homes on lot sizes a minimum of a half-acre (21,780 sq.
ft.)
- Some of the subject property abuts “Golden Leaf Rd”, which is off John Doctor Rd. There are several

lots zoned CFA that face John Doctor Rd and Golden Leaf Rd that are approx. 6,900 to 8,700 sq. ft. 
in size. These lots would be considered legal nonconforming. Some of them are also currently vacant 
and are located within the city’s service area. If developed, the owners would have to seek annexation 
as well if they become contiguous.  

- CFA is a “retired” zoning district. Properties cannot be rezoned to this district. 

4



• SF40 permits single-family site-built homes only (no manufactured homes allowed) on lot sizes
a minimum of 40,000 sq. ft., or 0.92 acres (approx.)

• SF20 permits single-family site-built homes only (no manufactured homes allowed) on lot sizes
a minimum of 20,000 sq. ft., or 0.46 acres (approx.)
- Several properties abutting the subject property are zoned SF20 (Cedar Ln; Shady Ln), yet do not

meet the minimum lot size requirements, and are considered legal nonconforming, in that they do not 
meet the lot size requirements and they contain manufactured homes. 

Other zoning districts in the immediate area include: 
• (County) Transportation Related Services (TRS) – allows uses that are auto reliant or focused

on providing services for autos, public/private transportation facilities, services, and
communication facilities.
- There is one parcel zoned TRC directly abutting the subject property with frontage on Hwy 905. There

are 2 other parcels across Hwy 905, at the corner of Hwy 905 and Old Pireway Rd, also zoned TRS. 
- TRS is a “retired” zoning district. Properties can no longer be rezoned to TRS. 

• (County) Office, Professional, Institutional (OPI) – office developments, hospitals, and
nursing homes.
- There is one parcel at the corner of Hwy 905 and Starview Rd zoned OPI, approx. 1.19 acres in size.
- OPI is a retired zoning district. Properties can no longer be rezoned to OPI.

• (County) Multi-Residential One (MRD1) – allows for mixed residential development in rural
areas of the county.
- There is one parcel zoned MRD1, approx. 1.23 acres in size, located on the opposite side of Hwy 905.

There is another parcel zoned MRD1 not far from this one that is also on the opposite side of Hwy 
905, approx. 100 acres in size. 

• (County) Planned Development District (PDD) – allows for a mixture of residential,
commercial, office, industrial uses on a single site provided that a written narrative and
conceptual plan are submitted.
- The subject property is adjacent to the Hopes Crossing PDD, which is a Habitat for Humanity

Community, with lot sizes averaging 0.28 to 0.30 acres, or 12,000 to 13,000 sq. ft. The homes within 
Hopes Crossing are single-family, site-built homes.  

• (County) MSF20 – allows single-family site built OR manufactured homes on lot sizes a
minimum of 20,000 sq. ft., or 0.46 acres.
- Rhodes Rd, across Hwy 905 from the subject property, has lot sizes ranging from 0.26 to 0.51 acres

(11,300 to 22,200 sq. ft.). Most of the properties on Rhodes Rd contain manufactured homes. All of 
them are within the city’s utility service area.  

• (City) Low/Medium-Density Residential (R-1) – allows for single-family, site-built homes on
lot sizes a minimum of 7,500 sq. ft.
- There are several parcels on the Conway side of John Doctor Rd and across Hwy 905 zoned R-1.

Over the last few years, several parcels within the Langston Heights subdivision have been annexed 

5



into the city, even though the subdivision was approved and developed in Horry County. Lot sizes in 
Langston Heights average half an acre to one acre in size, yet the zoning district (SF40) requires a 
minimum lot size of 40,000 sq. ft. There is also a small mobile home park at the corner of Hwy 905 
and John Doctor Rd (on Langston Dr.) that is in the city limits, zoned R-1, which is considered legal 
nonconforming. Per County Land Records, the property was annexed in 2011.  

Per Section 6.1.3 – Designation of Zoning for Annexed Areas (A), “when property has not been 
specifically included within a district or where property has become a part of the City of Conway by 
annexation, such areas shall be automatically be classified as Low Density Residential (R) for 
parcel(s) that can be developed as major developments, and Low/Medium Density Residential (R-1) for 
parcel(s) that can be developed as a minor development until such classification be changed by an 
amendment to the Ordinance.” 

Per Section 6.1.3 (B), “Where property is under consideration for annexation and the property owner 
has requested a classification other than Low Density Residential (R) for parcel(s) that can be 
developed as major developments or Low/Medium Density Residential (R-1) for parcel(s) that can be 
developed as a minor development, the City Council shall receive a recommendation from the 
Planning Commission and City staff concerning the appropriate zoning classification prior to a 
final vote to annex the property.”  

Per Section 6.1.3 (C), “Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing in accordance with the 
requirements set forth in Article 13, when a zoning classification different from the surrounding in-
city zoning is requested for property under consideration for annexation.” 

Based on the above language in the UDO, Planning Commission is not required to provide a 
recommendation because the default zoning classification of “R” is being requested upon annexation. 
The “R” (low-density residential) zoning district is a relatively new district, and before R was adopted 
as the default zoning district, the R-1 district was the “low-density” residential district and default zoning 
classification upon annexation. As such, the surrounding “in-city” property, currently zoned R-1, was 
considered the “low-density” residential district at the time of annexation and staff would consider the 
subject property, although no longer the same designation as the surrounding properties, the same 
classification being requested for the subject property as was requested for and/or assigned to the 
surrounding in-city properties at the time of their annexation. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The subject property is within the city’s utility service area. Regardless of whether Council chooses to 
annex now or sometime in the future, it is highly likely that the property will eventually be in-city 
property. If developed in Horry County, the same situation could occur on this property that has been 
occurring for lots within Langston Heights. Every time a lot is sold or a permit for construction of a 
home is requested, the owner will be directed to the City to request annexation. While the lots within 

6



Langston Heights well exceed the minimum lot size requirements for the R-1 district, they do not meet 
any of the City’s residential design standards, there are no sidewalks within the subdivision, and no 
requirement to install street trees because the plans were approved in Horry County.  

Additionally, the R district will require a minimum lot size of 10,000 sq. ft. with 25’ front and rear yard 
setbacks, 25’ corner front yard setbacks, and 10’ side yard setbacks. Many of the properties in the 
immediate area, although zoned to require larger lot sizes, are legal nonconforming with respect to lot 
size as well as the type of residential structure that is permitted within the zoning district. If annexed into 
the city limits, only site built residential structures would be permitted and the most current design 
standards would be applicable to the development. While we cannot require the property to be developed 
as a conservation subdivision, the applicant has expressed their interest in developing the property as a 
conservation subdivision, which will further the city’s interest in preserving environmentally sensitive 
areas that exist on properties containing flood zones or wetlands. According to a wetland survey provided 
by the applicant, there are approximately 9.29 acres of wetlands on the subject property, but with the 
exception of a very small “x-shaded” flood zone shared with an adjacent property, no flood zones are 
present. A conservation subdivision will also require 100’ buffers adjacent to rights-of-way and 50’ 
perimeter buffers along property boundaries that must remain undisturbed. Additionally, a conservation 
subdivision will require that 30% of upland area be preserved as Open Space, which is significantly more 
than what would be required for a standard development.   

Finally, there is another development, Rivers Edge Village, currently being reviewed, that will have 
access and frontage along John Doctor Rd, also being developed as a conservation subdivision. While 
previous annexation requests have not been successful nor supported by staff due to the fact that, at the 
time, there were no developments (in-city) with access on John Doctor Rd, the Rivers Edge Village 
subdivision does front John Doctor Rd, and that property was annexed as R-1 in the year 2000. 

For these reasons, staff would recommend approval of annexation of the subject property. 

CITY COUNCIL:

City Council approved First Reading of the ordinance at their July 15, 2024, meeting.

      

ATTACHMENTS: Application; GIS Maps

7



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-05 (A) 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 127 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED ON JOHN DOCTOR RD AND HWY 905 (PIN 339-00-00-0013), AND 

REZONE FROM THE HORRY COUNTY COMMERCIAL FOREST AGRICULTURE 
(CFA) DISTRICT, HORRY COUNTY RESIDENTIAL, NO MOBILE HOMES 

ALLOWED (SF40) DISTRICT, AND THE HORRY COUNTY RESIDENTIAL, NO 
MOBILE HOMES ALLOWED (SF20) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW-

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R) DISTRICT. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 127 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 127 acres of property located on John Doctor Rd and 
Hwy 905 (PIN 339-00-00-0013), and request to rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest 
Agriculture (CFA) district, Horry County Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF40) district, and 
the Horry County Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF20) district to the City of Conway Low-
Density Residential (R) district.  

This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low-Density Residential (R) area       under the 
zoning laws of the municipality. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

8



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
, 2024. 

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:  

Final Reading: 

July 15, 2024

9



HWY 905

PADGETT LN

JOHN DOCTOR RD

OLD PIREWAY RD

GOLDEN LEAF RD

SELLERS RD

GORE RD

BRYANTS LANDING RD

LANGSTON DR

PARKER RD

LIBBY'S LN

SPRINGFIELD LNGREENOCK LN

RECYCLE RD
COQUINA BAY DR

HARDEES FERRY RD

PIPERRIDGE DR

MCDOWELL RD
HOPES CROSSING CT

SHADY LN RHODES RD

STARVIEW DR

WILSON LN

LANGSTON DR

RECYCLE RD

Date: 6/21/2024  Time: 8:04:43 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R ANNEXATIONS\2024\John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905.mxd

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013
TMS #: 124-00-01-082

JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
(P24-0159)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013

10



HWY 905

PADGETT LN

OLD PIREWAY RD

JOHN DOCTOR RD

COQUINA BAY DR

HARDEES FERRY RD

GOLDEN LEAF RD

SELLERS RD

GORE RD

PORCHFIELD DR

GLASS HILL DR

LANGSTON DR

PARKER RD

LIBBY'S LN

SPRINGFIELD LN
GREENOCK LN

RECYCLE RD

CASTLEBAY DR
SANDOWN DR

HICKORY GLEN DR

MCDOWELL RD

SHADY LN

SANDPIPER RD

OLE CEDAR LN

PEARLWOOD LN

WILSON LN

Date: 6/21/2024  Time: 8:02:56 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R ANNEXATIONS\2024\John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905.mxd

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013
TMS #: 124-00-01-082

JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
(P24-0159)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013

11



CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

SF 10

SF 40

SF 20
MRD 1

SF 14.5

SF 10

MSF 20
SF 20

NC

MSF 20

SF 14.5

SF 20

SF 20

SF 14.5

PDD

CFA

SF 10

MSF 20

SF 14.5

SF 20

SF 10

SF 10

SF 20

CFA

SF 40

OPI

SF 14.5

MSF 20

SF 14.5

MSF 20

SF 14.5

SF 14.5

MSF 20

MSF 20

SF 20

MSF 20
MSF 20

SF 20

SF 20

SF 40

SF 20
OPI

SF 40

SF 14.5

SF 20

SF 20

MSF 20
MSF 20

MSF 20
CFA

SF 20
MRD 1

SF 20

TRS
SF 40

SF 40

CFA

MSF 10

SF 20

SF 20

MA1SF 20

SF 20

SF 20

SF 40SF 40 SF 40

SF 20

SF 20

CFA

HWY 905

PADGETT LN

OLD PIREWAY RD

JOHN DOCTOR RD

HARDEES FERRY RD

GOLDEN LEAF RD

LANGSTON DR

LIBBY'S LN

CASTLEBAY DR

PEARLWOOD LN

Date: 6/21/2024  Time: 7:52:18 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R ANNEXATIONS\2024\John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905.mxd

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013
TMS #: 124-00-01-082

JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
(P24-0159)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013

12



HWY 905

PADGETT LN

OLD PIREWAY RD

JOHN DOCTOR RD

COQUINA BAY DR

HARDEES FERRY RD

GOLDEN LEAF RD

SELLERS RD

GORE RD

PORCHFIELD DR

GLASS HILL DR

LANGSTON DR

PARKER RD

LIBBY'S LN

SPRINGFIELD LN
GREENOCK LN

RECYCLE RD

CASTLEBAY DR
SANDOWN DR

HICKORY GLEN DR

MCDOWELL RD

SHADY LN

SANDPIPER RD

OLE CEDAR LN

PEARLWOOD LN

WILSON LN

Date: 6/21/2024  Time: 7:54:17 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R ANNEXATIONS\2024\John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905.mxd

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013
TMS #: 124-00-01-082

JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
(P24-0159)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

13



HWY 905

PADGETT LN

OLD PIREWAY RD

JOHN DOCTOR RD

COQUINA BAY DR

HARDEES FERRY RD

GOLDEN LEAF RD

SELLERS RD

GORE RD

PORCHFIELD DR

GLASS HILL DR

LANGSTON DR

PARKER RD

LIBBY'S LN

SPRINGFIELD LN
GREENOCK LN

RECYCLE RD

CASTLEBAY DR
SANDOWN DR

HICKORY GLEN DR

MCDOWELL RD

SHADY LN

SANDPIPER RD

OLE CEDAR LN

PEARLWOOD LN

WILSON LN

Date: 6/21/2024  Time: 8:01:53 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R ANNEXATIONS\2024\John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905.mxd

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013
TMS #: 124-00-01-082

JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
(P24-0159)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 339-00-00-0013

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

14



This map was created using Latapult | www.latapult.com | Bigger Data Faster Maps Stronger Decisions

Latapult Map
Service Area Map

06/17/2024

 Bucksport W and GSWSA S

 Conway W and GSWSA S

 Conway W and S

 GSWSA W and S

 Little River W and S

 Loris W and S

 MB W and S

 Marco W and GSWSA S

 NMB W and S

 Parcels

15



V I C I N I T Y   M A P not to scale

LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC
prepared for

THE LANDS OF
BURROUGHS & CHAPIN

COMPANY, INC.
TOTALING 127.44 AC.

CONWAY TOWNSHIP
HORRY COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

WETLAND MAP OF

200 0 200 400

1 INCH = 200 FEET

SHEET       OF  11

field
5/2024

plat
5/16/2024

drawn
JED

reviewed
MDS

crew
LS

job 31654.0000w01

Z:
\3

16
54

\3
16

54
.0

00
0\

Su
rv

ey
\D

W
G

\3
16

54
.0

00
0w

01
.d

w
g 

- M
ay

 1
6,

 2
02

4 
- 1

:4
2:

31
 P

M

611 Burroughs & Chapin Blvd. • Suite 202
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577  •  843.839-3545

www.thomasandhutton.com

16

http://www.thomasandhutton.com
http://www.thomasandhutton.com


Burroughs & Chapin

17



18



19



20



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: III.B.   

ISSUE: 

Final reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (B), an ordinance to adjust the tax millage rate in the 
FY 24-25 budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

Tax year 2024 is a required reassessment year for real property in Horry County.  On June 27th, 
the Horry County Assessor’s Office provided tax reassessment results to Horry 
County municipalities.  As a result of that reassessment, the City of Conway is required by 
SC Code Section 12-37-251 (E) to calculate a “rollback millage” rate.  Staff has now 
completed that calculation based on the tax assessment values provided by the Assessor’s Office.  
That calculation results in a 5.5 mill decrease in the City’s millage rate from 87.7 mills to 82.2 
mills.  A property tax increase was approved during the FY 24-25 Budget to cover the necessary 
salary increase for Public Safety.  The rollback millage of 82.2 will increase to 95.3.  The City is 
within its authority to increase taxes under millage rate cap provisions in Section 6-1-320 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws.  That provision allows a municipality to increase the millage by a 
combined increase in population plus the consumer price index for the current year and the 
three previous years.  The proposed ordinance would implement the recommended millage rate 
of 95.3 mills for the City of Conway.  

City Council approved first reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C) at their July 15, 2024 meeting.

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve final reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C) to adjust the tax millage rate in the FY 
24-25 budget. 

21



ORDINANCE #2024-08-05 (B) 

AN ORDINANCE TO ADJUST THE TAX MILLAGE RATE 
IN THE FY 2024-25 BUDGET 

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2024, Conway City Council adopted Budget Ordinance #2024-06-03 
(A) for the City of Conway, South Carolina, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2024, and ending June 30, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, that ordinance anticipated an adjustment in the tax millage rate as a result of the 
2024 property tax reassessment being finalized by the Horry County Assessor; 
and 

WHEREAS, Horry County has now provided updated tax assessment value projections for real 
property located within the City of Conway; and 

WHEREAS,  the “roll-back millage” rate calculated by the method prescribed in SC Code 
Section 12-37-251 (E) results in the millage rate from 87.7 mills to 82.2 mills; 
and  

WHEREAS,  a property tax increase was approved in the FY 2024-25 budget year to cover the 
necessary Public Safety salary increases, the City’s tax millage is being increased 
by 13.1 mills, bringing the millage rate to 95.3 mills in its FY 2024-25 budget: 
Therefore be it   

ORDAINED, that the governing body of the City of Conway in Council duly assembled and by 
the authority of same, does hereby approve a tax millage of 95.3 mills for FY 
2024-25; and be it further 

ORDAINED, that, all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 
the conflict, hereby repealed. 

22



DONE AND RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this  day of 
_______________________, 2024. 

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST:   Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:  _______________ 

Final Reading: _______________ 

July 15, 2024

23



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: III.C. 

ISSUE: 

Final reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C), an ordinance granting a water and sewer 
utility easement to 1707 9th Ave (PIN 36802020028) across property of the City of Conway 
(PIN 36802020036) running from Wright Blvd to 1707 9th Avenue. 

BACKGROUND: 

1707 9th Ave has not had an active water and sewer account since October of 2015. They are 
looking to restore service but, even though the water and sewer previously ran through the 
lot that is now owned by the city there was never a recorded utility easement. An easement 
will be required by the city for 1707 9th to have water and sewer service. 

City Council approved first reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C) at their July 15, 2024 meeting.

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve final reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C) granting a utility easement to 1707 9th 
Avenue. 

24



ORDINANCE #2024-08-05 (C) 

GRANTING WATER AND SEWER UTILITY EASEMENT TO 1707 9TH AVENUE 
ACROSS PROPERTY OF THE CITY OF CONWAY RUNNING FROM WRIGHT 

BLVD TO THE PROPERTY OF 1707 9TH AVENUE 

WHEREAS,  the City of Conway is a municipality duly organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of South Carolina; and 

WHEREAS,  the City of Conway owns certain real property located between 
Wright Blvd and 1707 9th Avenue. 

WHEREAS,   1707 9th Avenue desires a utility easement for water and sewer service (10) 
feet in width, running for approximately 84 feet from Wright Blvd to 1707 
9th Avenue. 

WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest of the City of Conway and its citizens that the City 
of Conway grant said easement to the property of 1707 9th Avenue: 
Therefore be it 

ORDAINED, by Conway City Council, in Council duly assembled, that the City of 
Conway does hereby grant unto the property of 1707 9th Avenue an 
easement over the referenced property, the easement being more particularly 
described on the right-of-way easement, the same being incorporated 
herein and made part and parcel hereof by reference; and be it further 

ORDAINED, that the City Administrator is hereby authorized to execute said right-of-
way easement on behalf of the City of Conway. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective as of the date of the final 
reading of this Ordinance. 

25



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
_______________________, 2024. 

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST:   Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:  _______________ 

Final Reading: _______________ 

July 15, 2024

26



  
DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: III.D. 

 
 
ISSUE: 
 
Purchase of Loader and Excavator  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The FY 2024-2025 budget included $430,000 for the replacement of the wheel loader and 
purchase of new excavator in the Street Department. Public Works staff received quotes 
from Dobbs Equipment utilizing Government Purchasing Contracts for a total of 
$407,361.41 for both machines.  The loader and excavator are in stock and can be 
delivered next day once the purchase has been completed.  City Procurement staff has 
reviewed the Government Purchasing Contract and approved the use of cooperative 
purchasing. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Request Council approve the purchase of the wheeled loader and excavator for a total of 
$407,361.41 from Dobbs Equipment through Government Purchasing Contracts.  
 

27



Date: 28 June 2024 Offer Expires: 05 July 2024

Confidential

31251129Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
CITY OF CONWAY

Prepared By: GRAYSON INMAN

Dobbs Equipment
4900 East Highway 501
Aynor, SC 29511

Tel:  843-358-5688
Fax:  843-358-2826
Email: lowell.inman@dobbsequipment.com

28



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
CITY OF CONWAY
1001 3RD AVE
CONWAY, SC 29526
Business:  843-248-1770
JBARNHILL@CITYOFCONWAY.COM

Prepared By:
GRAYSON INMAN
Dobbs Equipment

4900 East Highway 501
Aynor, SC 29511

Phone:  843-358-5688
lowell.inman@dobbsequipment.com

3/3000 Comprehensive Warranty Quote Id: 31251129
28 June 2024
17 July 2024

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 05 July 2024

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

2024 JOHN DEERE 85 P-Tier 
Excavator - 1FF085PAHRJ001165

$ 130,592.22 X 1 = $ 130,592.22

John Deere Extended 
Warranty-3/3000 Comprehensive

$ 3,250.00 X 1 = $ 3,250.00

Sub Total $ 133,842.22

Equipment Total $ 133,842.22

Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 133,842.22
SubTotal $ 133,842.22
sales tax $ 500.00
Total $ 134,342.22
Balance Due $ 134,342.22

29



Confidential

Extended Warranty Proposal
2024 JOHN DEERE 85 P-Tier Excavator
Date : July 18, 2024
Machine/Use Information Plan Description Price
Manufacturer JOHN DEERE Application Deductible

Equipment Type
85 P TIER 
EXCAVATOR 
GEN A

Coverage List $ 3,250.00

Model
85 P TIER 
EXCAVATOR 
GEN A

Total Months   

Country US Total Hours   
Extended Warranty is available only through authorized John Deere Dealers for John Deere Products,and may be purchased at any time before the product's Standard Warranty,or 
Extended Warranty expires.

Customer Name - Please Print

Customer Signature

Extended Warranty Proposal Prepared for: I have been offered this extended warranty and

I ACCEPT the Extended Warranty✔

I DECLINE the Extended Warranty

If declined, I fully understand that any equipment listed 
above is not covered for customer expenses due to 
component failures beyond the original basic warranty 
period provided by John Deere.

This is not a contract. For specific Extended Warranty coverage terms and conditions, please refer to the 
actual Extended Warranty contract for more information and the terms, conditions and limitations of the 
agreement.

Note :

What Extended Warranty is :
The Extended Warranty Program is for the reimbursement on parts and labor for covered components that fail 
due to faulty material or original workmanship that occur beyond the John Deere Basic Warranty coverage period. 
The agreement is between Deere & Company and the owners of select John Deere Construction and Forestry 
equipment, who purchase the Extended Warranty Plans for the desired coverage as indicated in this proposal.

What Extended Warranty is not :
Extended Warranty is not insurance. It also does not cover routine maintainance or high wear items,or insurance-
related risks/perils such as collision, overturn, vandalism, wind, fire, hail, etc. It does not cover loss of income 
during or after an equipment failure. See the actual product-specific Extended Warranty agreement for a 
complete listing of covered components, and limitations and conditions under the program.

Features/Benefits:
Extended Warranty includes the following features and benefits under the program :
Pays for parts and labor costs incurred on failed covered components (less any applicable deductibles),
Does not require pre-approval before repairs are made by the authorized John Deere dealership,
Payments are reimbursed directly to the dealership with no prepayment required by the contract holder.

30



CONFIDENTIAL

2024 JOHN DEERE 85 P-Tier Excavator
Date:July 18, 2024
Machine/Use Information Plan Description Price

Manufacturer JOHN DEERE Application Deductible

Equipment Type
85 P TIER 
EXCAVATOR 
GEN A

Coverage List $ 0.00

Model
85 P TIER 
EXCAVATOR 
GEN A

Total Months   

Country US Total Hours   

Customer Name - Please Print

Customer Signature

John Deere Preventative Maintenance Proposal Prepared for: I have been offered this Preventative Maintenance 
agreement and

I ACCEPT John Deere Preventative Maintenance

I DECLINE John Deere Preventative Maintenance✔

If declined, I fully understand that any equipment listed 
above is not covered for customer expenses due to 
component failures beyond the original basic warranty 
period provided by John Deere.

This is not a contract. For specific John Deere Preventative Maintenance coverage terms and conditions, 
please refer to the actual John Deere Preventative Maintenance contract for more information and the 
terms, conditions and limitations of the agreement.

Note :

31



Date: 15 July 2024 Offer Expires: 22 July 2024

Confidential

31330020Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
CITY OF CONWAY

Prepared By: GRAYSON INMAN

Dobbs Equipment
4900 East Highway 501
Aynor, SC 29511

Tel:  843-358-5688
Fax:  843-358-2826
Email: lowell.inman@dobbsequipment.com

32



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
CITY OF CONWAY
2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD
CONWAY, SC 29527
Business:  843-248-1770
BFLEMING@CITYOFCONWAY.COM

Prepared By:
GRAYSON INMAN
Dobbs Equipment

4900 East Highway 501
Aynor, SC 29511

Phone:  843-358-5688
lowell.inman@dobbsequipment.com

Includes 108" sweeper broom 
3/3000 Comprehensive Warranty 
Includes 72" forks and frame 
 

Quote Id: 31330020
15 July 2024
23 July 2024

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 22 July 2024

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

2024 JOHN DEERE 544 P-Tier 
Wheel Loader - 
1DW544PACRLX23417

$ 268,719.19 X 1 = $ 268,719.19

John Deere Extended 
Warranty-3/3000 Comprehensive

$ 3,800.00 X 1 = $ 3,800.00

Sub Total $ 272,519.19

Equipment Total $ 272,519.19

Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 272,519.19
SubTotal $ 272,519.19
Sales Tax $ 500.00
Total $ 273,019.19
Balance Due $ 273,019.19

33



  DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
  ITEM: III.E.  
 
 
ISSUE: 
 
Request from Conway Downtown Alive for the Halloween Golf Cart Parade in conjunction with 
the Coastal Carolina University Homecoming Parade - October 19 from 7:00 a.m. until 
approximately 10:30 a.m. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
CDA is pairing up with CCU to host the Halloween Golf Cart Parade and CCU’s Homecoming 
Parade on October 19 with line-up starting at 7:30 a.m. and the parade beginning at 9:30 a.m. 
 
Halloween golf carts will line up on Bell Street and CCU Homecoming Parade will line up on 
Buck Street. The parade route will begin at the Public Safety parking lot, go down Ninth Avenue 
turn left on Laurel Street and end at the intersection of Elm Street and Laurel Street. 
 
CDA requests use of public restrooms at Public Safety Building and will hire comfort stations 
for Public Safety parking lot and end of parade route.  
 
CDA request street sweeper to clean route after parade, use 10 pelican cans at beginning and end 
of parade, and police assistance at front and end of parade. 
 
Santee Cooper will help lead parade and have speakers mounted to trucks and there will be a PA 
onsite at line up. 
 
There will be approximately 1500 participants. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the special event permit as presented. 

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM:  III.F. 

          

 

ISSUE: 

Acceptance of bid for eight Police Department vehicles (invoices attached). 

 

BACKGROUND: 

FY 2024-25 capital outlay budget approved vehicles for the police department. These are 
purchased with state contract fleet pricing. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Accept the quote from Santee Automotive for $413,812 and purchase patrol rated vehicles from 
2024-25 capital outlay budget.  

51



INVOICE
2024 Ford Responder Admin

Santee Automotive LLC
2601 Paxville Highway

Manning, South Carolina 29102
United States

Phone: 1-888-853-5338
Fax: 1-888-853-5338
info@santeefleet.com

BILL TO
City of Conway
David Crotts
1000 2nd Avenue
PO Drawer 1075
Conway, South Carolina 29528
United States

843-488-7633
dcrotts@cityofconway.com

Invoice Number: 1501

P.O./S.O. Number: PO # 062624

Invoice Date: July 1, 2024

Payment Due: July 31, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $359,758.00

Units Quantity Price Amount

Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD
2024 Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD
State Contract: 4400029870
5.7L Hemi Engine
8 Speed Auto Transmission
Black Vinyl Floor Covering
Law Enforcement Dome Lamp
Cloth Bucket Front Seats & Vinyl Rear Bench
Push Button Start
ParkView Rear Backup Camera
U Connect Bluetooth
Power 8 Way Driver Seat
18X8.0 Painted Aluminum Wheels
Full Size Spare Tire
BLIS
Trailer Tow Package
Skid Plates
Security Alarm
Power Liftgate
4 Keys with Fobs

TECHNOLOGY GROUP:
Advanced Brake Assist
Rain Sensitive Windshield Wipers
Lane Departure Warning Plus
Full Speed Forward Collision Warning Plus
Adaptive Cruise Control w/Stop

7 $48,350.00 $338,450.00

Exterior Color
Triple Nickel

7 $0.00 $0.00

Warranty
5 Year 100,000 full coverage warranty

7 $2,419.00 $16,933.00

Page 1 of 2 for Invoice #1501 52



Units Quantity Price Amount

Vehicle Delivery
1000 2nd Avenue
Conway, South Carolina 29528

7 $125.00 $875.00

Vehicle Sales Tax
South Carolina Vehicle Sales Tax/Infrastructure
Maintenance Fee

7 $500.00 $3,500.00

VIN #
1C4SDJFT6RC213647
1C4SDJFT8RC213648
1C4SDJFTXRC213649
1C4SDJFT6RC213650
1C4SDJFT8RC213651
1C4SDJFTXRC213652
1C4SDJFT1RC213653

1 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal: $359,758.00

Total: $359,758.00

Amount Due (USD): $359,758.00

Notes / Terms
State Contract # 4400029870

Page 2 of 2 for Invoice #1501

INVOICE
2024 Ford Responder Admin

Santee Automotive LLC
2601 Paxville Highway

Manning, South Carolina 29102
United States

Phone: 1-888-853-5338
Fax: 1-888-853-5338
info@santeefleet.com

53



INVOICE
2024 Ford F-150 Police Responder Admin

Santee Automotive LLC
2601 Paxville Highway

Manning, South Carolina 29102
United States

Phone: 1-888-853-5338
Fax: 1-888-853-5338
info@santeefleet.com

BILL TO
City of Conway
David Crotts
1000 2nd Avenue
PO Drawer 1075
Conway, South Carolina 29528
United States

843-488-7633
dcrotts@cityofconway.com

Invoice Number: 1502

P.O./S.O. Number: PO # 062724

Invoice Date: July 1, 2024

Payment Due: July 31, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $54,054.00

Units Quantity Price Amount

Ford F-150 Responder
State Contract: 4400029870
2024 Model Year
Model Code W1P
Ford F-150 Police Responder Admin
Super Crew 4x4 with 5.5' Box
3.5L EcoBoost 4-Valve V6
10 Speed Select Shift Automatic Transmission
Cloth Seats 
Carpet Floors
FX4 Off-Road Package
Class IV Trailer Hitch
Power Mirrors, Windows, and Locks
Remote Keyless Entry
Rear View Camera with Hitch Assist
SYNC Bluetooth with 1 USB Port
8 Way Power Drivers Seat
Front Seating-40/Console/40
Fog Lamps
Front/Rear Chrome Bumpers 
Black Platform Running Boards 
Police Engine Idle Feature 
Privacy Glass 
Rear Defrost
Trailer Brake Controller
4 Keys with Fobs

1 $50,745.00 $50,745.00

Exterior Color
Iconic Silver

1 $0.00 $0.00

Warranty
5 Year 100,000 full coverage warranty
$100 Deductible

1 $2,419.00 $2,419.00

Page 1 of 2 for Invoice #1502 54



Units Quantity Price Amount

Upfit Fee
transportation, bank and insurance fees (1 Month)
Does not include any delivery charge.
July Delivery

1 $265.00 $265.00

Vehicle Delivery
1000 2nd Avenue
Conway, South Carolina 29528

1 $125.00 $125.00

Vehicle Sales Tax
South Carolina Vehicle Sales Tax/Infrastructure
Maintenance Fee

1 $500.00 $500.00

VIN #
1FTFW1P84RKD39520

1 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal: $54,054.00

Total: $54,054.00

Amount Due (USD): $54,054.00

Notes / Terms
State Contract # 4400029870

Page 2 of 2 for Invoice #1502

INVOICE
2024 Ford F-150 Police Responder Admin

Santee Automotive LLC
2601 Paxville Highway

Manning, South Carolina 29102
United States

Phone: 1-888-853-5338
Fax: 1-888-853-5338
info@santeefleet.com

55



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: III.G. 

 

ISSUE: 

Purchase of Water Meters for the Public Utilities Department  

BACKGROUND:  

The Public Utilities Department is requesting approval to purchase water meters for FY 24-25.  

Water meters are necessary for the Department to maintain the city’s growth and departmental 
revenue. To keep up with the demand of new houses, replacing defected meters, and meters needed 
for the change out program, the department has to maintain an adequate stock of meters. Water 
meter manufacturers cannot keep up with the market demand for various reasons. There is a 
nationwide four to six months back order on water meters. The Utility Department is requesting 
permission to purchase as needed throughout the year.  

$800,000 has been budgeted in the FY 24-25 budget for water meter purchases.  

Recommendation  

Approve the purchase of water meters for FY24-25 for the Public Utilities Department.   

56



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: III.H. 

 
 
ISSUE:   
 
Acceptance of bid for a replacement vehicle for the IT Support Technician. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
One bid was received for the purchase of a replacement utility vehicle for the IT Support 
Technician under State Contract.   
 
The bid was received from Santee Automotive LLC State Contract #4400029870 in the 
amount of $39,866. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends acceptance of the Ford Explorer from Santee Automotive LLC for 
$39,866.00 from the FY 24-25 budget. 

57



QUOTE
2024 Ford Explorer Base RWD

Santee Automotive LLC
2601 Paxville Highway

Manning, South Carolina 29102
United States

Phone: 1-888-853-5338
Fax: 1-888-853-5338
info@santeefleet.com

BILL TO
City of Conway
David Crotts
1000 2nd Avenue
PO Drawer 1075
Conway, South Carolina 29528
United States

843-488-7633
dcrotts@cityofconway.com

Estimate Number: 1544

Customer Ref: State Contract #
4400029870

Estimate Date: July 22, 2024

Valid Until: September 20, 2024

Estimate Total
(USD):

$39,866.00

Units Quantity Price Amount

Ford Explorer Base 4x2
State Contract # 4400029870
2.3L EcoBoost Engine
10 Speed Automatic Transmission
P255/65R18 A/S Tires
Privacy Glass
Power liftgate
Tri-Zone AC
Cruise
Trailer Tow Package

Ford Co-Pilot360™
— Auto High-Beam Headlamps
— BLIS® (Blind Spot Information System) with
Cross-Traffic Alert
— Lane-Keeping System
○ Lane-Keeping Alert
○ Lane-Keeping Assist
○ Driver Alert
— Pre-Collision Assist with Automatic Emergency
Braking
(AEB)
○ Pedestrian Detection
○ Forward Collision Warning
○ Dynamic Brake Support
Rear View Camera
Headlamps (Automatic On/Off)
Hill Start Assist
Post-Collision Braking
Reverse Sensing System

1 $36,387.00 $36,387.00

Page 1 of 2 for Quote #1544 58



Units Quantity Price Amount

Exterior Color
Oxford White

1 $0.00 $0.00

3rd Key Fob
Third Key Fob

1 $415.00 $415.00

Warranty
5 Year 100,000 full coverage warranty

1 $2,419.00 $2,419.00

Vehicle Delivery
1000 2nd Avenue
Conway, South Carolina 29528

1 $145.00 $145.00

Vehicle Sales Tax
South Carolina Vehicle Sales Tax/Infrastructure
Maintenance Fee

1 $500.00 $500.00

Subtotal: $39,866.00

Total: $39,866.00

Estimate Total (USD): $39,866.00

Page 2 of 2 for Quote #1544

QUOTE
2024 Ford Explorer Base RWD

Santee Automotive LLC
2601 Paxville Highway

Manning, South Carolina 29102
United States

Phone: 1-888-853-5338
Fax: 1-888-853-5338
info@santeefleet.com

59



       DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
                   ITEM: III.I. 

 
ISSUE: 
Resolution accepting dedication of roadways & drainage and the financial guarantee for the roadway 
warranty for the Wild Wing Plantation, Phase 5A, subdivision (Barrington Way, Brook Park Place, and 
Hardwood Court). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
D.R. Horton, Inc requests to dedicate the roadways and drainage system in the Wild Wing Plantation, 
Phase 5A. The road(s) inside this development being offered for dedication are: Barrington Way, Brook 
Park Place, and Hardwood Court. 
 

Upon approval of this request by City Council, the City will accept the documents from D.R. Horton 
that are required (and applicable) to finalize acceptance of the roadways and drainage system, namely: 
Drainage Easement, Right-of-Way Deed, Warranty Agreement, General Joinder and Consent to 
Dedicate, As-Built Road Plans, Certification of Non-Litigation and the Warranty Surety in the form of 
a financial guarantee (in this case, a cashier’s check has been provided). The roadway warranty shall be 
in place for a period of three (3) years. 
 

Per the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the required roadway warranty agreement will be for 
three years from the date of the acceptance of the road dedication in the amount of $106,053.75, which 
is calculated by multiplying $27.50 per linear foot of 2 lane roadway and $5 per linear foot for each 
additional lane of roadway: 
  
 
 

Public Works has inspected the roadways and drainage in the Wild Wing Plantation, Phase 5A 
subdivision and found them acceptable to move forward with the dedication. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt the resolution accepting dedication of roadways and drainage system in the Wild Wing Plantation, 
Phase 5A, subdivision with a financial guarantee (cashier’s check provided) for a three-year warranty in 
the amount of $106,053.75. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
COUNTY OF HORRY   )  RESOLUTION 
CITY OF CONWAY   ) 
 
 

ACCEPTING THE ROADWAYS AND DRAINAGE SYSTEM 
IN THE WILD WING PLANTATION (PHASE 5A) SUBDIVISION 

  
WHEREAS, D.R. Horton, Inc has installed a roadway and drainage system within the city limits of 

Conway; and   
 
WHEREAS, D.R. Horton, Inc is requesting approval to dedicate street rights of way for Wild Wing 

Plantation, Phase 5A, subdivision, Barrington Way, Brook Park Place, and Hardwood 
Court; and 

   
WHEREAS, D.R. Horton, Inc also requests to convey their right, title and all interest related to the 

drainage system together with all public easements and rights of way thereto, located 
within the Barrington Way, Brook Park Place, and Hardwood Court rights-of-ways; and 

 
WHEREAS, Conway City Council has determined it would be in the best interest of Conway and its 

citizens to accept the street and drainage system Barrington Way, Brook Park Place, and 
Hardwood Court, as depicted on maps created by DDC Engineers, prepared 06/29/2023, 
titled Final Plat, and recorded in the Horry County Registrar of Deeds Plat Book 318, 
Page 249; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Conway, South Carolina 

to accept road right of way and drainage on the above stated Barrington Way, Brook Park 
Place, and Hardwood Court from D.R. Horton, Inc as presented in the deed and easement 
signed by Devon Lloyd of D.R. Horton, Inc. 

 
 
  

61



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member  Beth Helms, Council Member  

 
 

 
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



63



64



65



66



67



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 9 
 

  CITY OF CONWAY 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CONWAY CITY HALL 
229 MAIN STREET, CONWAY 

MONDAY, JULY 15, 2024 - 4:00 P.M. 
   

PRESENT:  Mayor Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Pro Tem Larry White, Amanda Butler, William 
Goldfinch, Julie Hardwick, Beth Helms, Justin Jordan.   
 
STAFF:  Adam Emrick, City Administrator; Mary Catherine Hyman, Deputy City Administrator; 
John Rogers, Deputy City Administrator; June Wood, Public Information Officer; Jeff Leveille, 
Technology Services Director; Timmy Williams, Hospitality & Beautification Director; Lynn 
Smith, Human Resources Director; Dale Long, Police Chief; James Friday, Public Utilities 
Director; Ted Dudley, Public Utilities Deputy Director; Brandon Harrelson, Public Works 
Director; Kayla Fleming, Municipal Judge; Jessica Hucks, Planning and Development Director; 
Le Hendrick, Fire Chief; Reggie Jenerette, Solid Waste Director; Ashley Smith, Parks and 
Recreation Director; Robert Cooper, Construction Services Director; Katie Dennis, Planner; Kayla 
Chiles, Administration Summer Intern; and Alicia Shelley, City Clerk.  
 
OTHERS:  There were approximately 40 others in attendance.   
    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Blain called the meeting to order.  Peyton Andreucci of The Rock 
Church gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
The requirements for posting notice of this meeting under South Carolina’s Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA) were met. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-07-15 (A) to annex approximately 0.24 acres of 
property located at 2671 Oak St (PIN 325-15-01-0014) and request to rezone from 
Horry County Residential District, no mobile homes allowed (SF20), to City of 
Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1).  

 
B. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-07-15 (B) to annex approximately 11.22 acres 

of property located on Highway 501, past the intersection of Wild Wing Blvd & 
Highway 501 (PIN 383-00-00-0323), and rezone from the Horry County Highway 
Commercial (HC) district to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) district.  

 
C. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-07-15 (C) to rezone approximately 3.31 acres 

of property located at 695 Century Circle (PIN 383-06-03-0005) from the City of 
Conway Planned Development (PD) district to the City of Conway Light Industrial 
(LI) district.  

 
D. Final Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-07-15 (D) to amend Article 10 – Subdivision 

and Land Development, of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO), regarding revisions to various standards contained within Article 10.  

 

68



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 

E. Final Reading of Ordinance #2024-07-15 (E), an ordinance granting a distribution 
right-of-way easement to the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee 
Cooper) across property of the City of Conway adjacent to Wright Boulevard at 
Racepath Avenue (PIN 368-03-01-0009).  

 
F. Final Reading of Ordinance #2024-07-15 (F), an ordinance granting permanent and 

temporary easements to Dominion Energy across property of the City of Conway 
adjacent to Lake Busbee.  

 
G. Final Reading of Ordinance #2024-07-15 (G), an ordinance amending Title 1, 

Government and Administration, Chapter 8 Elections, transferring of authority form 
the City of Conway to the Horry County Election Commission for conducting the 
City’s Municipal Elections. 

 
H. Special Event – 3rd Annual Smoke on the Waccamaw BBQ Festival – October 11-12, 

2024 
 
I. Approval of Memorandum of Agreement with SC Department of Juvenile Justice 
 
J. Approval of a Special Event Request – 2nd Annual Youth Performing Arts Festival – 

September 21, 2024 
 

K. Approval of June 17, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by 
Hardwick to approve the July 15, 2024 consent agenda.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Butler to approve the July 15, 2024 agenda.  
Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT: 
 
There was no public input.  Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Jordan, to close 
public input.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW HIRES: 
 
Blain introduced the following new hires for the City of Conway:  Sean O’Neil, Police Officer 
Trainee (absent); Thomas Carras, Right of Way Technician (absent); John Joder, Right of Way 
Operator II; Hunter Martin, Right of Way Technician II; Jena Kindrick, Police Officer Trainee; 
William Wilson Jr., Solid Waste Equipment Operator I; Vincent Taggart, Police Officer Patrol; 
Joseph Graham Jr., Senior Police Officer (absent); and Jacob Shroba, Police Officer Trainee 
(absent). 
 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION: 
 

69



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 3 of 9 
 

A. Resolution Honoring the Conway All Stars 12U Softball Team as the South 
Carolina State Champions – Blain presented the Conway All Stars 12U Softball team 
and the coaches with a Resolution honoring them as the South Carolina State Champions. 

 
B. Presentation of Longevity Awards – June 2024 – 10 Years:  June Wood, 

Administration; 10 Years:  Peyton Andreucci, Recreation – Emrick and Butler 
presented the longevity awards. 

 
C. Presentation of Employee of the Month for July 2024 – Public Service – A. Smith 

presented the July 2024 Public Service employee of the month to Nick Bucholtz. 
 
D. Discussion of a Request to annex approximately 5 acres of property located at 2493 

East Highway 501, (PIN 383-14-02-0002), and rezone from the Horry County 
Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) zoning 
district.  Dennis stated that the applicant submitted an annexation and rezoning application 
for the subject property in response to letters sent by administration to multiple commercial 
properties with restrictive covenants. The property is a donut hole along this portion of 
Highway 501 and the adjacent parcels have been in the City’s jurisdiction for a number of 
years.  The applicant has requested to rezone from Horry County’s Highway Commercial 
zoning district to the City of Conway’s Highway Commercial Zoning District but upon 
review and based on the current use of the property, the Limited Industrial (LI) zoning 
district would best suit the property, as the current use is not a permitted use in the HC 
district. Planning Commission recommended approval of annexation and rezoning to the 
LI zoning district as advised by staff at their July 11 meeting. This request will be on the 
next council meeting agenda for consideration. 
 
There was some discussion regarding the zoning of LI versus HC in this area. 
 

E. Discussion of a Request to annex approximately 0.67 acres of property located at 3045 
East Highway 501, (PIN 399-01-04-0008), and rezone from the Horry County 
Highway Commercial (HC) to the City of Conway Highway Commercial (HC) zoning 
district.  Dennis stated that the applicant submitted an annexation and rezoning application 
for the subject property in response to letters sent by administration to multiple commercial 
properties with restrictive covenants. The property is a donut hole along this portion of 
Highway 501 and the adjacent parcel, the Founders National Golf LLC parcel, was annexed 
into the city earlier this year.  The applicant has requested to rezone from Horry County’s 
Highway Commercial zoning district to the City of Conway’s Highway Commercial 
Zoning District. The property is adjacent to LI and HC parcels within the city. The uses on 
these parcels include a gas station, vacant land and the Myrtle Beach International Golf 
Course sign and entrance. Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on this item at 
their August 1 meeting and staff will forward their recommendation with first reading of 
the request. 

 
FIRST READING:                  
 

A. First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-05 (A) to annex approximately 127 acres of 
property located on John Doctor Road and Highway 905 (PIN 339-00-00-0013), and 
rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture (CFA) district, 

70



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Residential, no mobile homes allowed (SF40) district, and Residential, no mobile 
homes allowed (SF20) district to the City of Conway Low-Density Residential (R) 
district.  Hucks stated that this request was discussed at the workshop held at the June 17 

Council meeting. The property has frontage on 3 roadways: a small portion of the property 
has frontage on Highway 905, but there is additional frontage on John Doctor Road and 
Padgett Lane. Because the property is within the city’s water and sewer service area, the 
applicants are required to request annexation of the property, and if annexation is denied, 
the property owner would have to file restrictive covenants at the time in which water and 
sewer service is requested. Currently, the property is in Horry County’s jurisdiction, and is 
split-zoned between Commercial Forest Agriculture, Residential SF40 and Residential 
SF20.  The applicants are requesting that the property be assigned the “R” zoning district 
upon annexation, which is the city’s default district for annexed properties, and which do 
not require a recommendation from Planning Commission. The “R” district is the city’s 
low-density residential zoning district, which requires a min. lot size of 10,000 sq. ft. The 
city’s future land use map identifies the property as being low-density residential as well.  
Properties on the Conway side of John Doctor Road are already in the City limits. The 
proposed development, Rivers Edge Village, which already fronts John Doctor Road and 
will be accessed via John Doctor Road and East Country Club Drive, is currently being 
reviewed by TRC. That property was annexed into the city back in 1999 and, to staff’s 
knowledge, has been zoned R-1 since being annexed. R-1 is the low/medium-density 
residential district and prior to the creation of the R district, was also the city’s default 
zoning upon annexation.  The Langston Heights development, which is accessed solely 
from Highway 905, was developed in Horry County; however, over the years, individual 
lots within the subdivision have been annexed as a condition of receiving water and sewer 
services. A majority of the lots are in the city limits, but since the civil plans were reviewed 
through Horry County, the subdivision is not compliant with some of the City’s standards 
for land development, such as there not being any sidewalks or street trees in the rights-of-
way and only having one point of egress / ingress in the development.  The R district, while 
denser than the surrounding County zoning, is less dense than the surrounding in-city 
zoning. Furthermore, many of the properties surrounding the subject property are legal 
nonconforming, in that they do not meet the minimum lot size requirements for the zoning 
district in which they are located. Many of the lots directly adjacent to the subject property 
zoned CFA are approximately 6,900 to 8,700 sq. ft. in size, while the CFA district requires 
a minimum lot size of 21,780 sq. ft. Other properties with frontage on Highway 905 that 
are zoned SF20 are approximately 6,000 sq. ft. and up, while the minimum lot size for 
SF20 is 20,000 sq. ft. Across Highway 905 there are several parcels zoned CFA that are 
significantly smaller than the half-acre lot size that CFA requires.  

 
Hucks said that because the property is within the city’s utility service area, and the 
requested zoning is consistent with the city’s future land use map, staff recommends 
approval of the annexation request.   
 
Goldfinch had concerns with the nearby shooting range at the end of John Doctor Road 
and asked how the applicant would address the noise to potential buyers.  Walter Warren 
of Thomas & Hutton stated that staff could come up with language to be added on the plat 
that references the shooting range. 
 

71



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Motion:  Blain made a motion, seconded by White, to approve first reading of Ordinance 
#ZA2024-08-05 (A).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 

 
B. (Previously deferred) First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (B) to annex 

approximately 446 acres of property, located at or near the corner of Hwy 378 and 
Juniper Bay Road, Hwy 378 and Airport Rd, and on Dunn Shortcut Rd (PIN’s 337-
00-00-0009; 336-00-00-0043; 336-00-00-0044; 336-00-00-0045; 337-08-01-0004; 336-
13-04-0006; 336-14-04-0011; 336-15-03-0003; 370-00-00-0011; and 370-04-01-0004), 
and rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture (CFA) district, 
Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) district, Horry County Residential, no 
mobile homes allowed (SF40) district, City of Conway Low/Medium-Density 
Residential (R-1) district, and the City of Conway Heavy Industrial (HI) district to 
the City of Conway Planned Development (PD) district.  Hucks said that this project is 
formerly known as the Tributary Planned Development, and the last time it was before 
Council for consideration was in January of this year, when the request was ultimately 
deferred. The request was also discussed at the budget retreat in February, where concerns 
of TRC, staff and Council were discussed. Some of these concerns included:  the density 
of the tracts located on Dayton Drive; the connecting road proposed through the city shop 
complex; the location of the park / amenity center; the flex tracts on the Highway 378 side 
having flexibility for commercial or residential uses…commercial only was preferred; 
details of the proposed trail system; and the quality of homes to be constructed on some of 
the lots that were proposed to be very narrow.  Since that time, there has been a change in 
the homebuilder for the project. The applicants have made some changes to the proposed 
planned development and have addressed many of the comments that staff and council had. 
Additionally, with the removal of the properties on Dayton Drive from the PD, as well as 
the removal of multifamily as a possible use on one of the previous flex tracts, there has 
been a reduction in the total number of proposed residential units, bringing the total number 
of units down from 1,767 to 1,261; a difference of 506 residential lots or units.  

 
Hucks stated that the applicants are asking for first reading of the request, with the 
understanding that second reading cannot occur until Planning Commission has provided 
a recommendation on the amended PD and until all outstanding comments have been 
addressed. The annexation/rezoning request has been readvertised for a public hearing to 
be held at the August 1 Planning Commission meeting. Staff have also reposted the 
property and resent letters to property owners whose property is within 200’ of any of the 
subject properties. Hucks informed Council that she was happy to go into more detail on 
the request at this time; however, this item is also proposed to be discussed at the workshop 
portion of this meeting.  
 
Motion:  Blain made a motion, seconded by Hardwick, to approve first reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (B).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 

 
C. (Previously deferred) First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (A), of a request for 

the City of Conway to enter into a development agreement for the development of 
property located at or near the corner of Highway 378 and Juniper Bay Road, 
Highway 378 and Airport Road, and on Dunn Shortcut Road (PIN’s 337-00-00-0009; 
336-00-00-0043; 336-00-00-0044; 336-00-00-0045; 337-08-01-0004; 336-13-04-0006; 
336-14-04-0011; 336-15-03-0003; 370-00-00-0011; and 370-04-01-0004).  

72



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 
Motion:  Goldfinch made a motion, seconded by Blain, to defer first reading of 
Ordinance #ZA2024-02-05 (A) to Executive Session.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion 
carried. 
 

D. First Reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (B), an ordinance to adjust the tax millage 
rate in the FY 24-25 budget.  Emrick stated that this item was discussed at the Budget 
Retreat.  This is a reassessment year for real property in Horry County and will determine 
what the new value for billing for the City will be and then the City is required to roll back 
the millage rate so that there is not a tax increase that goes with the reassessment.  The 
City’s millage will go from 87.7 mills to 82.2 mills. After the tax increase was approved in 
the new budget the new millage rate will be 95.3, which is 5.5 mills decrease in the City’s 
previous, and which reflects revenue neutral.  Emrick stated that those people that are upset 
when they get their reassessment notice because their property is worth more, they are not 
being taxed more on that reassessment because the millage rate is being reduced now.   
 
Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Jordan, to approve first reading of 
Ordinance #2024-08-05 (B).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

E. First Reading of Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C), an ordinance granting a water and 
sewer utility easement to 1707 9th Avenue (PIN 368-02-02-0028) across property of 
the City of Conway (PIN 368-02-02-0036) running from Wright Blvd to 1707 9th 
Avenue.  Dudley stated that this is a request for a water and sewer utility easement at 1701 
9th Avenue to cross City property running from Wright Blvd.  The property previously had 
service last in June 2015.  There is no record of an existing easement, however this 
easement would be the most cost-effective solution for both parties.   
 
Motion:  Blain made a motion, seconded by Goldfinch, to approve first reading of 
Ordinance #2024-08-05 (C).  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 

                                                                                                                      
CONSIDERATION: 
 

A. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of the Parcel Known as the 
Skipper Tract Within the City of Conway.  Hyman stated that for years the City has 
acquired conservation property and worked with local conservation groups to make this 
happen and with that in mind the Historic Ricefields Association reached out to the city 
about giving this parcel to the city to add to that conservation property network.  This parcel 
is known as the Skipper Tract and is approximately 182 acres.  The city owns the parcel to 
the north and to the south.  The parcel is currently in the city and zoned R1, so if it is 
acquired a rezoning action would come before Council to rezone it to Conservation 
Preservation.   
 
Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Goldfinch, to adopt the Resolution to accept 
the parcel known as the Skipper Tract.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

B. Consideration of a Proposed Street Name from Second Avenue to Laurel Street.  Long 
stated that towards the river there is an improved paved road in front of the Peanut 
Warehouse that connects Second Avenue over to Laurel Street.  Long said that lots of 

73



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

events happen in this area, and this connector road needs to be named, such as Peanut Road 
to memorialize the area.  Planning Commission will give final approval once Horry County 
911 confirms that there is no duplicate name that would hinder response time in an 
emergency.   
 
Motion:  Blain made a motion, seconded by Butler, to approve the proposed street name 
to Peanut Road.  Vote:  Unanimous.  Motion carried. 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  
 
Emrick informed Council of the following: 

• Emrick started with some updates from the Parks and Recreation Department.   Last 
weekend, they hosted the Top Gun Summer Nationals Baseball Tournament which 
featured 31 teams from all over the Southeast. 

• On Friday, the first of our Sensory Friendly Movie Nights will take place at the Terrace 
with the Lion King.  This is part of our ongoing efforts to be more inclusionary with our 
Autism and Neurodivergent population. 

• Rockin on the River is scheduled for August 3rd from 10 a.m. until 7 p.m.  There will be 
live music, food trucks, kayak and paddle board races, the Float parade, and more.   

• Emrick said that the city has broken the Town Green work out separately from the rest of 
the project so we can make sure that it is finished before the fall festivities arrive.  This 
project will make the Town Green larger, connect the Garden Walk to 2nd Avenue and the 
Planning Alley, install stormwater infrastructure to drain the area, improve lighting and 
landscaping and make way for the next round of projects which will include improved 
parking, the splash pad and more.   

• National Night out is August 6th from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m.  This is typically a Public Safety led 
initiative to focus on how as a community, we can stop crime together.  This year, the 
Police Department has invited other departments to participate and speak about the services 
they offer to the community.  It is at the Conway Sports and Fitness Center and there will 
be food and games. 

• Last week, the city was in a dire drought situation.  The city has received some rain over 
the last few days which has improved our standing but is still in a moderate drought.  There 
are areas of the County still in an extreme drought.  Droughts are something we have a plan 
for as does Grand Strand Water and Sewer.  We will continue to monitor just as we do 
hurricanes and be in contact with you should conditions worsen or require any action. 

• This week is the Municipal Association’s annual meeting in Greenville.  While the sessions 
are always very good for elected officials, Emick asked Council to take time to explore 
Greenville and take note of the things that they like and would like staff to try to implement.  
Exploring other cities’ successes is one of the best ways to create the city’s own successes. 

• Staff will have our annual Emergency Management Exercise next Monday.  Chief 
Hendrick always challenges staff with a new disaster scenario which challenges all 
departments to formulate their responses to the disaster.  This has drastically assisted us in 
preparation for hurricanes, ice storms, and maybe even the first alien attack.  Emrick said 
that his fingers are crossed for that scenario this time. 

• There were no department head reports today, but there were two workshop items before 
the executive session that was on the agenda. 

 

74



July 15, 2024 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 

COUNCIL INPUT:  
 
Helms applauded the Rec Department, including the staff, girls’ softball, coaches, players, and the 
pickleball courts.  Helms then said that she appreciates all of staff that work outside in the heat.   
 
Butler said that Riverfest was great but wants the city to be mindful next year when closing roads 
of the one business, Waccamaw Outfitters that was completely isolated.  Butler wants everyone to 
be aware of the back-to-school events and giveaways.   
 
White asked that water be on the trucks for staff that works outside. 
 
Jordan congratulated the girls’ softball team and recommended that the Rec Center request to host 
the state championship tournament. 
 
Hardwick also congratulated the girls’ softball team on being state champions.  Hardwick then 
congratulated the Chamber of Commerce on a great Riverfest and said that she liked the layout 
with being able to access the store by boat.  Hardwick thanked staff for everything.  
 
WORKSHOP: 
 
Discussion of a possible TIF District for Downtown – Gary Pope of Pope Flynn Group gave a 
presentation to Council on 2 possible options for redevelopment financing:  1) Tax Increment 
Financing District (TIF) or 2) Multi-County Business Park (MCBP).  Pope said that tax increment 
financing allows a city to borrow money for redevelopment within its incorporated boundaries, 
with debt service to be provided from the incremental property tax revenues resulting from the 
value added by the redevelopment project. Pope reviewed the statutory process and stated that the 
TIF could be established within 45 days but could take up to 70 days and he went over what is 
included in the redevelopment plan.  Pope told of the consent process and said that obtaining the 
participation of the County and School District is the key to a successful TIF District.  Pope told 
of considerations for the TIF.   
 
Pope then explained the Multi-County Business Park process and considerations.   
 
Pope said that both TIF Districts and MCBP’s have been used with success in redevelopment 
financing.  TIF Districts are better known and understood, but the 2005 amendment makes the 
consent of the County and School District critical.  MCBP’s are less well understood, but very 
flexible and increasing in prevalence.   
 
Emrick stated that the TIF District would include wrapping the Riverfront, including the Ash 
Ponds, new Riverwalk area, come around 2nd Avenue to 1st Avenue, 3rd Avenue, and up around 
Coast RTA.   
 
Brookhaven Planned Development – Hucks said that there is a new home builder associated 
with this planned development and they have reduced the acreage by about 40 acres by removing 
parcels on Dayton Drive, and the road through the City Shop complex was removed.  The 
neighborhood amenity center and the City Park were moved to a more central location.  The 
flexibility of flex tract along Highway 378 was removed, and the one tract is reserved solely for 
commercial uses.  The removal of the flexibility of one of the flex tracts to do multifamily reduces 

75



July 15, 2024 

Page 9 of 9 

the overall number of residential units from 1,767 to 1,261.  Hucks showed several streetscape 
examples.  Discussion was had on the lot widths, flex tract with townhomes, Master Plan, Open 
Space Master Plan, commercial spaces, retention ponds, Airport Overlay District, Macala Acres, 
and the traffic improvements.  Hucks stated that staff is still going through revisions and will 
update Council.    

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by Hardwick to enter into 
Executive Session for the following: (A) Discussion on Contractual Negotiations Incident to the 
Potential Development of Riverfront Property [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70(A) (5)]; (B) 
Discussion on Contractual Negotiations Incident to the Potential Acquisition of Property on 
Highway 378 [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70 (A) (2)]; and (C) Discussion of a Proposed 
Development Agreement known as Brookhaven [pursuant to SC Code §30-4-70 (A) (2)]. 

RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion:  White made a motion, seconded by 
Hardwick to leave Executive Session.  Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 

POSSIBLE ACTION ON MATTERS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion: 
Helms made a motion, seconded by Goldfinch to approve first reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-02-
05 (A) to enter into a Development Agreement for a subdivision known as Brookhaven.   Vote:  
Unanimous. Motion carried. 

Motion: Blain made a motion, seconded by Jordan to authorize the City Administrator to purchase 
property on Highway 378.   Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 

Motion: Blain made a motion, seconded by Hardwick to authorize the City Administrator to begin 
negotiations with the developer relative to riverfront property.   Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 

ADJOURNMENT:  Motion: Helms made a motion, seconded by Butler to adjourn the meeting.  
Vote:  Unanimous. Motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Minutes approved by City Council this             day of 
    , 2024. 

__________________________ 
    Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

5
August

76



 

DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: V. 

 
 

 
 

Presentation of Longevity Awards – July 2024 
 

• 5 Years:  William “Ashley” Smith, Recreation 
• 5 Years: Robert DeGiovine, Public Utilities 
• 5 Years: Jarred Hucks, Public Utilities 
• 10 Years: Matthew “Garth” Holt, Police 
• 10 Years: Ancil “Monty” Martin, Hospitality & Beautification 
• 10 Years: Bryson Gillig, Hospitality & Beautification 
• 10 Years: Michael Greene, Recreation 
• 10 Years: James Floro, Recreation 
• 20 Years: Lynn Smith, Human Resources 
• 20 Years: Bryan Williams, Recreation 

 
 

77



                                                                                                                           DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
                                                                                                                           ITEM: VI.A. 
 
ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (A) to annex approximately 5 acres of property located 
at 2493 Hwy 501, (PIN 383-14-02-0002), and rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial 
(HC) to the City of Conway Light Industrial (LI) zoning district.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 17th, 2024, the applicant submitted an annexation and rezoning application for the subject 
property, located at 2493 Hwy 501. The property is currently zoned Horry County Highway Commercial 
(HC) and is currently the location of the business Clayton Homes. The property is a donut hole along 
this portion of Hwy 501, and the adjacent parcels have been within the City of Conway for a number of 
years. The property has a restrictive covenant on file and annexation is being required at this time, in 
accordance with the conditions of the existing restrictive covenant agreement. 
 

Per Section 3.2.13 of the UDO, the intent of the Light Industrial (LI) district is to provide areas for light 
industrial uses, such as manufacturing, processing, repairing of goods, wholesaling, storage, packaging, 
distribution and retailing while ensuring adjacent and nearby properties are not adversely impacted. 
 

Surrounding uses/Zoning Districts: 
The property abuts parcels zoned City of Conway Light Industrial (LI), and City of Conway Highway 
Commercial. Adjacent uses is a self-storage facility, and Tyson Sign company office space; both of 
which are zoned LI. 
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies the entire parcel as Highway Commercial 
(HC).  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the request with staff’s recommendation to change the 
zoning district from Horry County Highway Commercial to City of Conway Light Industrial. 
 
CITY COUNCIL: 
Staff presented the request to City Council at their July 15th meeting. Council indicated during discussion 
of the request that they were in support of HC for the property, not LI.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of annexing the property as Light Industrial (LI) due to the existing use of 
the property. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Application; GIS Maps 

78



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (A) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 5 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 2493 HWY 501, (PIN 383-14-02-0002), AND REZONE FROM THE 

HORRY COUNTY HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL (HC) TO THE CITY OF CONWAY 
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) ZONING DISTRICT. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 5 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage      of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and     made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 5 acres of property located at 2493 Hwy 501 (PIN 383-
14-02-0002), and request to rezone from the Horry County Highway Commercial (HC) district, to the 
City of Conway Light Industrial (LI) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Light Industrial (LI) area       under the zoning laws of 
the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

 

 

79



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 

 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 

 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

80



HWY 501

WINYAH RD

WILD WING BLVD

FAIRWAY LN

YEAGER AVE

HWY 501

Date: 6/18/2024  Time: 10:32:39 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\2493 E HWY 501 - Clayton Homes\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES.mxd

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002
TMS #: 151-00-03-049

2493 E HWY 501 (CLAYTON HOMES)
(P24-0155)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002

81



HWY 501

WINYAH RD

CENTURY CIR

BURNING RIDGE RD

WILD WING BLVD

LILY ST

MYRTLE TRACE DR

HONEYWELL TRL
YEAGER AVE

ALLIED DR
SIN

GL
ET

ON
 RI

DG
E R

D

BEACHWOOD DR

SPOONBILL DR

CANDLEWOOD DR

HYACINTH DR

FAIRWAY LN

HICKORY DR

WM FINLAYSON RD

BERRY TREE LN

TEE SHOT DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

DESERT WILLOW DR

DOWITCHER DR

HAVEN VIEW WAY

FAIRWAY BLVD

GODWIT WAY

UNIVERSITY PLAZA DR

CRICKET CT BOXWOOD LN

BEECHWOOD CT

MOSS CIR

BOHEMIA CT

HWY 501

WILD WING BLVD

Date: 6/18/2024  Time: 10:31:43 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\2493 E HWY 501 - Clayton Homes\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES.mxd

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002
TMS #: 151-00-03-049

2493 E HWY 501 (CLAYTON HOMES)
(P24-0155)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002

82



HC

HC
SF 10

LI

PUD

HC

LI

PUD

LI

HC

HC

HC

HC

PUD

HC

HC

PUD

HC

SF 10

PUD

HC

LI

HC

HC

OPI

SF 10

OPI

SF 10

PUD

SF 10

HWY 501

WINYAH RD

CENTURY CIR

BURNING RIDGE RD

WILD WING BLVD

LILY ST

MYRTLE TRACE DR

HONEYWELL TRL
YEAGER AVE

ALLIED DR

BEACHWOOD DR

SPOONBILL DR

CANDLEWOOD DR

HYACINTH DR

FAIRWAY LN

WM FINLAYSON RD

BERRY TREE LN

TEE SHOT DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

DESERT WILLOW DR

DOWITCHER DR

HAVEN VIEW WAY

FAIRWAY BLVD

GODWIT WAY

UNIVERSITY PLAZA DR

CRICKET CT BOXWOOD LN

MOSS CIR

BOHEMIA CT

HWY 501

WILD WING BLVD

Date: 6/18/2024  Time: 10:25:39 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\2493 E HWY 501 - Clayton Homes\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES.mxd

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002
TMS #: 151-00-03-049

2493 E HWY 501 (CLAYTON HOMES)
(P24-0155)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002

83



HC

HC
SF 10

LI

PUD

LI

HC

PUD

LI

HC

HC

HC

HC

PUD

HC

HC

PUD

HC

SF 10

LI

HC

PUD

HC

SF 10

HC

OPI

SF 10

OPI

SF 10

PUD

SF 10

HWY 501

WINYAH RD

CENTURY CIR

BURNING RIDGE RD

WILD WING BLVD

LILY ST

MYRTLE TRACE DR

HONEYWELL TRL
YEAGER AVE

ALLIED DR

BEACHWOOD DR

SPOONBILL DR

CANDLEWOOD DR

HYACINTH DR

FAIRWAY LN

WM FINLAYSON RD

BERRY TREE LN

TEE SHOT DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

DESERT WILLOW DR

DOWITCHER DR

HAVEN VIEW WAY

FAIRWAY BLVD

GODWIT WAY

UNIVERSITY PLAZA DR

CRICKET CT BOXWOOD LN

MOSS CIR

BOHEMIA CT

HWY 501

WILD WING BLVD

Date: 6/18/2024  Time: 10:26:52 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\2493 E HWY 501 - Clayton Homes\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES.mxd

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002
TMS #: 151-00-03-049

2493 E HWY 501 (CLAYTON HOMES)
(P24-0155)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002

84



HWY 501

WINYAH RD

CENTURY CIR

BURNING RIDGE RD

WILD WING BLVD

LILY ST

MYRTLE TRACE DR

HONEYWELL TRL
YEAGER AVE

ALLIED DR
SIN

GL
ET

ON
 RI

DG
E R

D

BEACHWOOD DR

SPOONBILL DR

CANDLEWOOD DR

HYACINTH DR

FAIRWAY LN

HICKORY DR

WM FINLAYSON RD

BERRY TREE LN

TEE SHOT DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

DESERT WILLOW DR

DOWITCHER DR

HAVEN VIEW WAY

FAIRWAY BLVD

GODWIT WAY

UNIVERSITY PLAZA DR

CRICKET CT BOXWOOD LN

BEECHWOOD CT

MOSS CIR

BOHEMIA CT

HWY 501

WILD WING BLVD

Date: 6/18/2024  Time: 10:28:22 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\2493 E HWY 501 - Clayton Homes\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES.mxd

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002
TMS #: 151-00-03-049

2493 E HWY 501 (CLAYTON HOMES)
(P24-0155)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

85



HWY 501

WINYAH RD

CENTURY CIR

BURNING RIDGE RD

WILD WING BLVD

LILY ST

MYRTLE TRACE DR

HONEYWELL TRL
YEAGER AVE

ALLIED DR
SIN

GL
ET

ON
 RI

DG
E R

D

BEACHWOOD DR

SPOONBILL DR

CANDLEWOOD DR

HYACINTH DR

FAIRWAY LN

HICKORY DR

WM FINLAYSON RD

BERRY TREE LN

TEE SHOT DR

MIDDLE RIDGE AVE

DESERT WILLOW DR

DOWITCHER DR

HAVEN VIEW WAY

FAIRWAY BLVD

GODWIT WAY

UNIVERSITY PLAZA DR

CRICKET CT BOXWOOD LN

BEECHWOOD CT

MOSS CIR

BOHEMIA CT

HWY 501

WILD WING BLVD

Date: 6/18/2024  Time: 10:30:09 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!ANNEXATION REZONINGS\!2024\2493 E HWY 501 - Clayton Homes\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES.mxd

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002
TMS #: 151-00-03-049

2493 E HWY 501 (CLAYTON HOMES)
(P24-0155)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 383-14-02-0002

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

86



DocuSign Envelope ID: E6FA0B9A-B8A6-49FE-8D20-64DDDC80C0D7

87



DocuSign Envelope ID: E6FA0B9A-B8A6-49FE-8D20-64DDDC80C0D7

88



Staff Use Only 

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION Received: ___ _ 
BS&A#: ___ _ 

City of Conway Planning 
Department 196 Laurel Street, 29526 

Phone: (843) 488-9888 
Conway, South Carolina www.cityofconway.com 

Instructions: 

• Fill out all 3 pages
• Submit signed forms to City of Conway Planning Department

ST ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF HORRY 

) 

) 

) 

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION 

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CONWAY 

WHEREAS, § 5-3-150 (3) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina provides for the annexation of an area or 
property which is contiguous to a City by filing with the municipal governing body a petition signed by all persons 
owning real estate in the area requesting annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned are all persons owning real estate in the area requesting annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the area requesting annexation is described as follows, to wit: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned petition the City Council of Conway to annex the below described 
area into the municipal limits of the City of Conway. 

PROPERTY LOCATION/SUBDIVISION: _,_L_O_T __ B ___________________ _ 
PIN: 383-14-02-0002 ACREAGE: 5

------------------

PROPERTY ADDREss: 2493 W HWY 501, Conway, SC 29526

PROPERTY OWNER MAILING ADDRESS: CMH Homes, Inc. POB 4098 MARYVILLE TN 37802-9790

PROPERTY OWNER TELEPHONE NUMBER:    _865-380-3000_______________ _

               IS 

PLEASE INCLUDE A LET
RESPONSIBILITY TO THE APPLICANT.

PROPERTY OWNER EMAIL: _RTLLICENSE@CLAYTONHOMES.COM_______________

APPLICANT: __CMH HOMES, INC. dba CLAYTON HOMES #295_______________

APPLICANT'S EMAIL: --RTLLICENSE@CLAYTONHOMES.COM       --------

THE APPLICANT THE PROPERTY OWNER? CIRCLE: YES □ NOD

IF NOT: TER 
 
OF AGENCY OR POWER OF ATTORNEY FROM THE OWNER ADDIGNING

PROPERTY OWNERS (Attach additional sheets if necessary) 
DATE: _________ _ 

(Print) (Signature) 

DATE: _________ _ 
(Print) (Signature) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E6FA0B9A-B8A6-49FE-8D20-64DDDC80C0D7

6/17/2024Larry Carter

89



Zoning Map Amendment 
Application 

Incomplete applications will not be accepted. 

City of Conway Planning Department Phone: (843) 488-9888 
196 Laurel Street, 29526 Conway, South Carolina 

Notice 

Staff Use Only 

Received:. __ _ 

BS&A #:. ___ _ 

www .cityofconway.com 

All zoning map amendments shall follow the procedures set forth in Section 13.1.7 of the City of Conway 
Unified Development Ordinance. Amendments to the Official Zoning Map shall be initiated by members of 
City Council, the Planning Commission, the Planning Director, or owner(s) of the subject property. In order 
to partially defray the administrative cost of zoning map amendments, the applicant shall pay a filing fee 
to the City of Conway in the amount of $250.00 at the time this application is submitted. Planned 
Development rezonings are $2,500.00 and Planned Development Amendments are $500.00, and due at 
the time of submission. A plat of the property to be rezoned may be required with this application. 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: 
2493 W HWY 501' Conway, SC 29526 

FEE PAID ( ) YES ( ) NO 

AREA OF SUBJECT PROPERTY (ACREAGE): 5 PIN: 383-14-02-0002

cuRRENTzoNING cLAssIFIcAnoN: Horry County Highway Commercial 

coMPREHENsIvE PLAN 203s FUTURE LAND usE: Highway Commercial 

REouEsTEDzoNING CLAssIFIcATION: City of Conway Highway Commercial 

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

_C_M_H_H_O_ M_E_S_I_N_C _________ PHONE# __ _

____________________________ PHONE# ____ _ 

MAILING ADDRESS OF PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

CMH HOMES, INC.dba Clayton Homes #295

PO Box 4098, Maryville, TN 37802

************************************************************************************************************** 

I (we) the owner(s) do hereby certify that all information presented in this Zoning Map 
Amendment Application is correct. 

PROPERTY OWNER'S SIGNATURE(S) DATE 

PROPERTY OWNER'S SIGNATURE(S) DATE 

THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT AT THE MEETING. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E6FA0B9A-B8A6-49FE-8D20-64DDDC80C0D7

6/17/2024

90



          DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
          ITEM: VI.B.  
 

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (B) to annex approximately 0.8 acres located at 420 
Maplewood Circle (PIN 324-06-04-0013), and rezone from the Horry County Residential District (SF 
40), no mobile homes allowed to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
An application was submitted by Meredith Dudley on July 3, 2024, as a requirement to connect to water 
and/or sewer utilities. According to Horry County Land Records, the property was transferred into the 
applicant’s name on June 25, 2024. The property is within the Maplewood subdivision, located off Long 
Avenue Extension. There is an existing single-family residence on the property.  
 

 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies this parcel as Low/Medium Density 
Residential (R-1). 
 
The intent of the R-1 District is to provide for the preservation and expansion of areas for low to medium 
density, detached single-family residential development in the City of Conway. The district shall present 
a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are 
incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval of First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (B).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

91



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (B) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 0.8 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 420 MAPLEWOOD CIRCLE (PIN 324-06-04-0013), AND REQUEST TO 

REZONE FROM THE HORRY COUNTY RESIDENTIAL, NO MOBILE HOMES 
ALLOWED, (SF40) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW/MEDIUM DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) DISTRICT. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 0.8 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.34 acres of property located at 420 Maplewood Circle 
(PIN 324-06-04-0013), and request to rezone from the Horry County Residential, no mobile homes 
allowed (SF40) district to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. For a 
more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1) 
area       under the zoning laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

92



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93



MA
PL

EW
OO

D C
IR

LONG AVE EX

BRIARWOOD LN

Date: 7/5/2024  Time: 7:30:47 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\420 Maplewood Circle\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR.mxd

PIN #: 32406040013
TMS #: 1100002091

420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
(P24-0172)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 324-06-04-0013

94



LONG AVE EX

RAINWOOD RD

MA
PL

EW
OO

D C
IR

BRIARWOOD LN

Date: 7/5/2024  Time: 7:29:54 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\420 Maplewood Circle\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR.mxd

PIN #: 32406040013
TMS #: 1100002091

420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
(P24-0172)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 324-06-04-0013

95



SF 40

SF 40

SF 40

SF 40 CFA

SF 40

SF 40

SF 40

SF 40

SF 40
SF 40

SF 40

SF 40

MSF 20

LONG AVE EX

RAINWOOD RD

MA
PL

EW
OO

D C
IR

Date: 7/5/2024  Time: 7:24:15 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\420 Maplewood Circle\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR.mxd

PIN #: 32406040013
TMS #: 1100002091

420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
(P24-0172)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 324-06-04-0013

96



LONG AVE EX

RAINWOOD RD

MA
PL

EW
OO

D C
IR

BRIARWOOD LN

Date: 7/5/2024  Time: 7:25:14 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\420 Maplewood Circle\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR.mxd

PIN #: 32406040013
TMS #: 1100002091

420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
(P24-0172)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 324-06-04-0013

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

97



LONG AVE EX

RAINWOOD RD

MA
PL

EW
OO

D C
IR

BRIARWOOD LN

Date: 7/5/2024  Time: 7:28:59 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\420 Maplewood Circle\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR.mxd

PIN #: 32406040013
TMS #: 1100002091

420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
(P24-0172)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 324-06-04-0013

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

98



99



100



101



       DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
       ITEM: VI.C.  
 

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (C) to annex approximately 1.02 acres located at 4221 
Siwel Road (PIN 295-16-01-0010), and rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture 
district (CFA) to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The annexation application was submitted by James Tyson Bo Soles on July 16, 2024, as a requirement 
to connect to water and/or sewer utilities. According to Horry County Land Records, the property was 
transferred into the applicant’s names on July 16, 2024. The property is within the Maple Hill 
subdivision, located between Collins Jollie Road and Long Avenue Extension. There is an existing 
single-family residence on the property. A restrictive covenant was recorded for this property on 
December 12, 1996.  
 

 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies this parcel as Low/Medium Density 
Residential (R-1). 
 
The intent of the R-1 District is to provide for the preservation and expansion of areas for low to medium 
density, detached single-family residential development in the City of Conway. The district shall present 
a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are 
incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
If it is the long-term goal of Council to annex the area, staff recommends continued annexation of 
properties in the area, and approval of First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (C).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (C) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 1.02 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 4221 SIWEL ROAD (PIN 295-16-01-0010), AND REQUEST TO REZONE 
FROM THE HORRY COUNTY COMMERICAL FOREST AGRICULTURE DISTRICT 

(CFA) TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW/MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT (R-1) DISTRICT. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 1.02 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.51 acres of property located at 4221 Siwel Road (PIN 
295-16-01-0010), and request to rezone from the Horry County Commercial Forest Agriculture 
District (CFA) to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. 
For a more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1) 
area       under the zoning laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

103



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

104



SIWEL RD

LONG AVE EX

COLLINS JOLLIE RD

REGAL DR

LONG AVE EX

Date: 7/17/2024  Time: 7:33:15 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\4221 Siwel Road\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD.mxd

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010
TMS #: 111-00-02-055

4221 SIWEL RD
(P24-0180)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010

105



HWY 813

LONG AVE EX
SIWEL RD

REGAL DR

COLLINS JOLLIE RD

BRADFORD DR

BEAGLE TRL

HAGWOOD CIR

DERRICK LN

MILL BERRY LN

LONG AVE EX

Date: 7/17/2024  Time: 7:31:59 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\4221 Siwel Road\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD.mxd

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010
TMS #: 111-00-02-055

4221 SIWEL RD
(P24-0180)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010

106



CFA
CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

CFA

SF 10

CFA

CFA

CFA

SF 40

CFA

CFACFA

CFA

SF 10

CFA

HWY 813

LONG AVE EX

COLLINS JOLLIE RD

SIWEL RD

BRADFORD DR

REGAL DR

DERRICK LN

BEAGLE TRL

MILL BERRY LN

HAGWOOD CIR

HIL
L C

T

LONG AVE EX

MILL BERRY LN

Date: 7/17/2024  Time: 7:24:59 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\4221 Siwel Road\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD.mxd

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010
TMS #: 111-00-02-055

4221 SIWEL RD
(P24-0180)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010

107



HWY 813

LONG AVE EX

COLLINS JOLLIE RD

SIWEL RD

BRADFORD DR

REGAL DR

DERRICK LN

BEAGLE TRL

MILL BERRY LN

HAGWOOD CIR

HIL
L C

T

JAMA RD

LONG AVE EX

MILL BERRY LN

Date: 7/17/2024  Time: 7:25:58 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\4221 Siwel Road\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD.mxd

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010
TMS #: 111-00-02-055

4221 SIWEL RD
(P24-0180)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

108



HWY 813

LONG AVE EX
SIWEL RD

REGAL DR

COLLINS JOLLIE RD

BRADFORD DR

BEAGLE TRL

HAGWOOD CIR

DERRICK LN

MILL BERRY LN

LONG AVE EX

Date: 7/17/2024  Time: 7:31:08 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\4221 Siwel Road\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD.mxd

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010
TMS #: 111-00-02-055

4221 SIWEL RD
(P24-0180)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 295-16-01-0010

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

109



110



111



112



113



114



115



          DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
          ITEM: VI.D.  
 

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (D) to annex approximately 0.34 acres located at 5205 
Columbia Street (PIN 383-08-02-0045), and rezone from the Horry County Residential District (SF 10), 
no mobile homes allowed to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
An application was submitted by Treena Thibodeau on July 2, 2024, requesting annexation as a condition 
of connecting to city utilities. According to Horry County Land Records, the property has been owned 
by the applicant since April 5, 2004. The property is within the College Park subdivision, located off 
Hwy 501. There is an existing single-family residence and two storage buildings on the property.  
 

Council has annexed approximately twelve properties within the College Park Subdivision. 
 
CITY OF CONWAY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies this parcel as Low/Medium Density 
Residential (R-1). 
 
The intent of the R-1 District is to provide for the preservation and expansion of areas for low to medium 
density, detached single-family residential development in the City of Conway. The district shall present 
a relatively spacious character, promote quiet, livable neighborhoods, and prohibit uses that are 
incompatible with the residential nature of the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Staff recommends approval of First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (D).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

116



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (D) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX APPROXIMATELY 0.34 ACRES OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED    AT 5205 COLUMBIA STREET (PIN 383-08-02-0045), AND REQUEST TO 

REZONE FROM THE HORRY COUNTY RESIDENTIAL, NO MOBILE HOMES 
ALLOWED, (SF10) DISTRICT TO THE CITY OF CONWAY LOW/MEDIUM DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) DISTRICT. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONWAY:  

 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS: 
A petition has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Conway to annex approximately 0.34 
acres of property described herein and represented on a map. The City Council of the City of Conway 
has determined that the annexation of this area into the City of Conway will be to the advantage of the 
municipality. 

 
The area proposed for annexation is adjacent to the present City limits. The petition for annexation of 
land and declared zoning is hereby accepted by the governing body of the municipality of Conway, 
and made a part of the City of Conway, South Carolina, to wit: 

 
ALL AND SINGULAR, those certain parcels, lots, or tracts of land in Conway Township, County 
and    State aforesaid, containing approximately 0.34 acres of property located at 5205 Columbia Street 
(PIN 383-08-02-0045), and request to rezone from the Horry County Residential, no mobile homes 
allowed (SF10) district to the City of Conway Low/Medium Residential (R-1) district. 

 
This annexation includes all waterways, roads, and rights-of-way adjacent to the property. For a 
more specific description of said property, see attached map. 

 
SECTION 2. APPLICATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE: 
The property is admitted as City of Conway Low/Medium Density Residential District (R-1) 
area       under the zoning laws of the municipality. 

 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE: 
The annexation is effective as of the date of the final reading of this Ordinance. 

 
AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that such changes shall be made on the Official Zoning Map. 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent 
of such inconsistency. 

117



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled, this day of 
  , 2024. 

 
 
 
Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
 
Amanda Butler, Council Member William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 
 
 
Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member Beth Helms, Council Member 
 
 

              
Justin D. Jordan, Council Member ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
First Reading:     

 

Final Reading:    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

118



COLUMBIA ST

WAKE FOREST RD

PRESBYTERIAN DR

CONVERSE DR

Date: 7/3/2024  Time: 7:42:30 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\5205 Columbia Street\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST.mxd

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045
TMS #: 151-18-05-006

5205 COLUMBIA ST
(P24-0171)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045

119



HWY 501

UNIVERSITY BLVD
CHANTICLEER DR

ALLIED DR

CAROLINA RD

CONVERSE DR

HUSTED RD

DAVIDSON RD

PRESBYTERIAN DR

WAKE FOREST RD

COLUMBIA ST

TOWNSHIP CIR

YAUPON DR

SALEM ST

HORRY-GEORGETOWN BLVD

DAYTONA ST

LABONTE ST
DE

ST
INY

 LN

HICKS CIR

HWY 501 E

SPADONI PARK CIRCLE

EVERGREEN LN

HWY 501

Date: 7/3/2024  Time: 7:41:35 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\5205 Columbia Street\GIS\ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST.mxd

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045
TMS #: 151-18-05-006

5205 COLUMBIA ST
(P24-0171)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045

120



GR

GR HCHC

PUD

SF 10

SF 10

HC

SF 10

GR

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10
SF 10

SF 10

GR

SF 10

PUD

GR

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10

PUD

SF 10

SF 10

SF 10
SF 10

PUD

SF 10

HWY 501

UNIVERSITY BLVD
CHANTICLEER DR

ALLIED DR

CAROLINA RD HUSTED RD

DAVIDSON RD

PRESBYTERIAN DR
WAKE FOREST RD

COLUMBIA ST

YAUPON DR

SALEM ST

HORRY-GEORGETOWN BLVD

DAYTONA ST

LABONTE ST

HICKS CIR

HWY 501 E

SPADONI PARK CIRCLE

EVERGREEN LN

HWY 501

Date: 7/3/2024  Time: 7:36:54 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\5205 Columbia Street\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST.mxd

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045
TMS #: 151-18-05-006

5205 COLUMBIA ST
(P24-0171)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045

121



HWY 501

UNIVERSITY BLVD
CHANTICLEER DR

ALLIED DR

CAROLINA RD

CONVERSE DR

HUSTED RD

DAVIDSON RD

PRESBYTERIAN DR

WAKE FOREST RD

COLUMBIA ST

TOWNSHIP CIR

YAUPON DR

SALEM ST

HORRY-GEORGETOWN BLVD

DAYTONA ST

LABONTE ST
DE

ST
INY

 LN

HICKS CIR

HWY 501 E

SPADONI PARK CIRCLE

EVERGREEN LN

HWY 501

Date: 7/3/2024  Time: 7:38:49 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\5205 Columbia Street\GIS\FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST.mxd

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045
TMS #: 151-18-05-006

5205 COLUMBIA ST
(P24-0171)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045

FUTURE LAND USE
CONSERVATION PRESERVATION

DOWNTOWN HISTORIC DISTRICT

FOREST AGRICULTURE

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

INSTITUTIONAL

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

MIXED USE

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL

PLANNED DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL

RECREATIONAL

RURAL RESIDENTIAL

UTILITY

PARCELS

122



HWY 501

UNIVERSITY BLVD
CHANTICLEER DR

ALLIED DR

CAROLINA RD

CONVERSE DR

HUSTED RD

DAVIDSON RD

PRESBYTERIAN DR

WAKE FOREST RD

COLUMBIA ST

TOWNSHIP CIR

YAUPON DR

SALEM ST

HORRY-GEORGETOWN BLVD

DAYTONA ST

LABONTE ST
DE

ST
INY

 LN

HICKS CIR

HWY 501 E

SPADONI PARK CIRCLE

EVERGREEN LN

HWY 501

Date: 7/3/2024  Time: 7:40:37 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\ANNEXATIONS\!R1 ANNEXATIONS\2024\5205 Columbia Street\GIS\FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST.mxd

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045
TMS #: 151-18-05-006

5205 COLUMBIA ST
(P24-0171)³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

PIN #: 383-08-02-0045

REVISED 2019 FLOOD ZONES
0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

A

AE

VE

PARCELS

123



38308020045

124



125



Zoning Map Amendment 
Application 

Incomplete applications will not be accepted. 

City of Conway Planning Department 
196 Laurel Street, 29526 

Phone: (843) 488-9888 
Conway, South Carolina 

Notice 

Staff Use Only 

Received:. __ _ 
BS&A#: ___ _ 

www .cilyofconway.com 

All zoning map amendments shall follow the procedures set forth in Section 13. l .7 of the City of Conway 
Unified Development Ordinance. Amendments to the Official Zoning Map shall be initiated by members of 
City Council, the Planning Commission, the Planning Director, or owner(s) of the subject property. In order 
ta partially defray the administrative cost of zoning map amendments, the applicant shall pay a filing fee 
to the City of Conway in the amount of $250.00 at the time this application is submitted. Planned 
Development rezonings are $2,500.00 and Planned Development Amendments are $500.00, and due at 
the time of submission. A plat of the property to be rezoned may be required with this application. 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: ___________ FEE PAID ( ) YES ( ) NO 

AREA OF SUBJECT PROPERTY (ACREAGE): _________ PIN: _______ _ 

CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION: ____________________ _ 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2035 FUTURE LAND USE:. ________________ _ 

REQUESTED ZONING CLASSIFICATION: ___________________ _ 

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

___________________________ ,PHONE# ____ _ 

_________________________ ,PHONE# ___ _ 

MAILING ADDRESS OF PROPERTY OWNER(S): 

************************************************************************************************************** 

I (we) the owner(s) do hereby certify that all information presented in this Zoning Map 
Amendment Application is correct. 

(\ 
'S SIGNATURE(S) DATE 

PR DATE 

THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT AT THE MEETING. 

5205 Columbia Street

0.34 38308020045

SF10

low density residential

R1

TREENA THIBODEAU 843-424-8663

126



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: VI.E.  

 

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (E), amending Article 4 – Use Tables and Article 5 – Specific 
Use Regulations, of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), regarding mobile 
detailing and car wash facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Currently there are no provisions for the lawful permitting of mobile car wash/detailing businesses within 
any zoning district in the City of Conway. Mobile car wash/detailing businesses are on the rise and without 
regulations in place, City staff can only advise interested parties that this is not a permitted use. 
 

From the discussions that staff has had with CCU alumni, this may become a future curriculum at Horry 
Georgetown Technical College. HGTC has brought back their automotive program after 30 years and the 
goal of several individuals is to get automotive reconditioning offered as a course of study in the automotive 
program. 
 

Currently, Horry County allows Mobile Car Detailing as a Home-Based Business with the condition that 
vehicles are not brought back to the applicants home for washing. Staff has also reached out to DHEC and 
OSHA for any requirements they may have. 
 

Furthermore, there has been recent interest in waterless vehicle detailing based out of trade shop locations 
in the industrial districts. The waterless wash process is as simple as spraying a product on a painted surface, 
wiping said product from the surface and going behind with a clean microfiber towel to ensure the excess 
product is gone. This process is typically done inside of the trade shop location. With this process there is 
no need to introduce water to clean a vehicle; therefore, eliminating any stormwater run-off. 
 

The proposed amendments separate car washing facilities from mobile auto detailing and also creates a 
subsection for “waterless” car wash facilities.  
 
CITY COUNCIL: 
This issue was first discussed with City Council during the workshop portion of their June 17th meeting. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the proposed amendment(s) at their July 11th 
meeting, and recommended approval of the amendment(s), with revisions.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendment(s), as recommended by Planning Commission. 
 

 
 

127



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (E) 
 

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 4 – USE TABLES AND ARTICLE 5 – SPECIFIC USE 
REGULATIONS, OF THE CITY OF CONWAY UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORIDNANCE (UDO) 

REGARDING MOBILE DETAILING AND CAR WASH FACILITIES. 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as Amended 

known as the “South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act of 
1994” enabled the City of Conway to adopt the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) of 
the City of Conway, South Carolina; and 

 

WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 13.1.7 of the UDO provides that the regulations, restrictions, and 
boundaries set forth in said Ordinance may from time be amended, supplemented, changed, 
or repealed in accordance with S.C. State Code §6-29-760; and 

 

WHEREAS, there has been interest in adding automotive reconditioning as a course of study in the 
automotive program at Horry-Georgetown Technical College; and 

 

WHEREAS, the UDO does not currently address mobile auto detailing; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment would allow staff to regulate mobile auto detailing; and 
 

WHEREAS,  mobile auto detailing permits would require a yearly review prior to obtaining a City of 
Conway business license; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amendments would separate car washing facilities from mobile auto detailing and also 
create a subsection for “waterless” car wash facilities. Therefore, be it  

 

ORDAINED  by the City Council of the City of Conway, in Council duly assembled, that the UDO be 
amended as attached hereto; and be it further 

 

ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   This ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 

128



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled this   day of    , 2024. 
 
 

 

               

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor     Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

               

Amanda Butler, Council Member      William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 

 

               

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member     Beth Helms, Council Member 

 

 

               

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member    ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:   
 

Final Reading:   

129



 

 

Article 4. Use Tables 
 

I. HIGHWAY 
COMMERCIAL SPECIFIC USES RA RR R1 R2 R3 R4 P NC HC MU2 CC CBD WRD5 IN LI HI FA CP Applicable 

Standards 
Auto-Oriented 
Uses 

Auto Accessory Store         P  P    P P    
Automobile Dealership         P  P P   P P    
Car Wash Facility & 
Detailing         C      C C   5.1.6 

Mobile Car Detailing       C C C C C C C C C C C  5.1.6 
Rental Car Agency         P C     P P    
Truck & Auto Repair 
Service         P      P P    

Waterless Car Wash & 
Detailing Facility               C C   5.1.6 

Supply & 
Wholesale 

Building Supply, 
Equipment Sales         P      P P    

Office Supply Store         P C P P  P P P    
Paint, Wallpaper, Flooring 
Supply & Sales         P C P    P P    

Entertainment 
Venues 

Arcades, Billiard         P  Pa Pa Pa       
Bingo Establishment         P           
Bowling Alley         P           
Multiplex Movie Theater         P C          
Drive-In Movie Theater               P P    
Amphitheaters               C C   5.1.34 
Theater         P C P P        

Other Farmers’ Market        C C C C C C    C C 5.1.10 
Fitness Center, Athletic 
Club        P P C P P  Pa3 P P P P  

Hotel, Motel, Inn       P P P C P C P Pa3 P P    
Restaurant w/ Drive-thru         P           

 
 
 

130



 

 

Section 5.1 – Conditional Uses 
 

• 5.1.1 Adult Entertainment Establishments 
• 5.1.2 Bail Bond Establishments 
• 5.1.3 Banquet Halls 
• 5.1.4 Bed & Breakfast Homes 
• 5.1.5 Commercial Short-Term Rentals 
• 5.1.6 Car Wash & Detailing Facilities, Waterless Car Wash / Detailing Facilities, and Mobile Detailing 
• 5.1.7 Day Care Facilities & After School Programs 
• 5.1.8 Dry Cleaners with Drive-Through Services 
• 5.1.9 Educational Facilities 
• 5.1.10 Farmers Markets 
• 5.1.11 Flea Markets 
• 5.1.12 Funeral Homes & Mortuaries 
• 5.1.13 Grocery Stores 
• 5.1.14 Group Homes 
• 5.1.15 Hunting 

• 5.1.16 Mobile Vending 

• 5.1.17 Modular Homes 
• 5.1.18 Open Air Storage 

• 5.1.19 Open Display 

• 5.1.20 Produce Stands 

• 5.1.21 Public Utility Facilities 
• 5.1.22 Religious Institutions 
• 5.1.23 Sidewalk Cafés and Outdoor Dining 

• 5.1.24 Tattooing/Tattoo Parlors 

• 5.1.25 Taverns, Bars, Night Clubs, Teen Clubs 
• 5.1.26 Transit Shelters 
• 5.1.27 Transmission Towers, Wireless, Cellular or Communication Towers 
• 5.1.28 Veterinarian / Animal Clinic 

• 5.1.29 Mini Storage Units 
• 5.1.30 Nurseries, Garden Centers, and Greenhouses 

• 5.1.31 Doggie Daycare and Spas 
• 5.1.32 Community Support Services (Support Facilities & Outpatient Treatment Facilities) 
• 5.1.33 Parking as a Stand-Alone Use 

• 5.1.34 Amphitheaters 
• 5.1.35 Indoor and Outdoor Shooting Ranges 
• 5.1.36 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (EVCS) 

131



 

 

5.1.6 Car Wash & Detailing Facilities, Waterless Car Wash / Detailing Facilities, and Mobile 
Detailing  

 

A. Car Washes Facilities. Car Wash Facilities are permitted in the HC, LI, and Hl Zoning Districts, 
subject to the following conditions: 
1. Minimum Lot Size: A minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet shall be required for a car wash 

facility. 
2. Vehicle Stacking: A minimum of 5 stacking spaces for queuing of cars shall be provided 

per car wash bay. 
3. Required Yard Activity: Car wash facilities shall not conduct any drying, cleaning, 

polishing, dispensing of gasoline or other comparable operation within any landscape 
areas. 

4. Distance from Residential Districts: The establishment shall not be located within one 
hundred (100) feet, measured in any direction, of a residential district. The measurement 
shall be taken from the exterior of the building (or the tenant bay of the establishment if the 
use is in an integrated center), to the zoning boundary of the protected district except when 
such establishment is separated from such protected district by an intervening street. 

5. Exit Drives: The establishment shall provide exit drives that are a minimum of one hundred 
(100) feet in length, measured from the vehicle exit of the car wash establishment to the 
pavement edge of the street. 

6. Surface Drainage: The surface and drainage treatment at the exit drive shall be designed 
so that no water accumulates on the surface or onto the public right-of-way or adjoining 
properties as a result of the car wash operations. 

 

B. Waterless Car Wash / Detailing Facilities. Waterless car wash / detailing facilities are permitted 
in the LI and HI zoning districts, subject to the following conditions: 
1. A Waterless Car Wash shall not create any standing water and shall not drain directly into 

the drainage system. 
2. Required parking and site circulation for existing use(s) shall be maintained. 
3. The facility being used for the Waterless Car Wash and Detailing business shall be permitted 

and have received a Certificate of Occupancy as a trade shop use by the City of Conway 
Building Dept. 

4. The facility shall pass Fire Inspection prior to a City of Conway Business License being issued. 
 

C. Mobile Car Washing & Detailing. Mobile car washing and detailing shall be permitted as a 
conditional use in any commercial zoning district, subject to the following provisions: 
1. Business License. The Mobile Car Detailer shall obtain and carry at all times a valid City of 

Conway Business License. 
2. Zoning Compliance. The Mobile Car Detailer shall obtain an annual Zoning Compliance. 

The Zoning Compliance shall be valid from May 1 until April 30 of the ensuing year to run 
concurrent with the City of Conway Business License. 

3. Other Approvals/Licensing. The Mobile Car Detailer shall be responsible for providing all 
required licensing and/or approvals from the appropriate agencies at the time of 
application. 

4. Prohibited Activities. In the operation of a mobile car wash/auto detail business, it is unlawful 
for a principal, employee or agent of the business to: 

132



 

 

a. Engage in washing the exterior of a vehicle upon any public street or public right-of-
way, or upon any vacant property or unimproved lot. 

b. Interfere with the ingress or egress of the abutting property owner or tenant or create or 
become a public nuisance, increase traffic congestion or delay or constitute a hazard 
to traffic, life or property or an obstruction to adequate access to fire, police or 
sanitation vehicles. 

c. Engage in washing or cleaning a motor vehicle engine. 
d. Leave any location without first picking up, removing and disposing of all trash, materials 

or refuse remaining from mobile car wash/auto detail activities. 
e. Advertise that services are available at a specific location, or otherwise invite customers 

to come to a specific location to receive services provided by the business. 
f. Erect or place advertising of the business at any location the business may operate. 
g. Operate at a fixed location. 
h. Operate a mobile car wash/auto detail business to provide services at any location 

without the consent of the property owner or authorized tenant. 
i. Violate any provision of SC State Law or of the City of Conway Code of Ordinances 

pertaining to water conservation, stormwater system or noise. 
5. Registration & Insurance. Each vehicle that is used by a mobile car wash/auto detail 

business in performing services must be properly registered and insured. 
6. Signage. Each licensee that uses a vehicle in its business operation may display the business 

name and telephone number on one or both sides of the vehicle (or on any attached 
mobile unit or trailer). The displayed graphics must be in the form of paint, decals, or 
magnetic stickers affixed to the vehicle or trailer body. 

7. Time Limits. A mobile car wash/auto detail business may operate between the hours of 7am 
– 8pm and cannot be at a particular location for more than four (4) hours. 

8. The limitation above does not apply to a licensed mobile car wash business during any 
period in which the business: 

9. Is washing vehicles consisting of the inventory of a motor vehicle dealer licensed in the City 
of Conway to sell or lease motor vehicles; or 

10. Pursuant to the written agreement with another business, is washing the vehicles that are 
used by the other business or vehicles that belong to employees of the other business. 

11. Location Restrictions. No mobile car wash/auto detail business may operate within one 
hundred fifty feet (150) of any location at which any other mobile car wash/auto detail 
business is providing services during the period of those services. 

12. Mobile Car Washing & Detailing (including waterless) may also be permitted as a home-
based business, subject to the requirements in Section 5.2.1 – Home Based Business.  
 

 
 
 
 

5.2.4 Home-Based Business 
 

A gainful occupation conducted in an office within a residential structure, by a resident of the home, 
with no outward appearances of a business within the premise. Services of the business that are not 
office-related are conducted off-premises. 

133



 

 

A. Home-based businesses shall be subject to the following requirements: 
1. No retail sales shall be permitted from the home; 
2. No visible indication the residence is being used as a business location shall be permitted; 
3. No stock or equipment shall be stored at the residence except in a vehicle used in 

conjunction with the business; 
4. Such business shall employ only the business owner and members of the immediate family 

currently residing at the business address; 
a. In the event the business employs outside of the immediate family and/or outside of the 

home of the business address, such employees shall not be permitted to park vehicles 
or equipment at the address of the home-based business and shall not be permitted to 
meet at the location of the home-based business.  

5. No clients or customers of such business shall be permitted to receive services at the business 
location; 

6. No accessory structure shall be used in conjunction with the business and only ten percent 
(10%) or one (1) room of the residence shall be used in conjunction with the business; 

7. No deliveries shall be permitted other than by regular mail or overnight mail services; 
8. No tractor trailers shall be permitted in conjunction with home-based businesses; 
9. All signage shall be subject to the requirements set forth in Article 11. 
10. The following list table contains the type of permitted home-based businesses that may use 

the home for office use only. Any similar home-based businesses shall be reviewed and 
approved by the Planning Director or their designee. 

11. Violations of this section may result in the revocation of the zoning approval issued in 
conjunction with the business license as well as the issuance of an ordinance summons to 
appear in municipal court. 

 

Auto Wrecker Service Brick Mason Carpenter 

Carpet or Rug Cleaning Carpet & Tile Contractor Consulting Services 

Drywall & Painting Contractor Electrical Contractor Errand/Shopping Service 

Fencing Contractor Fire Extinguisher Service Floor Finishing Contractor 

General Contractor Heating/Air Conditioner Contractor Ice Cream Vendor 

Insulation Contractor Janitorial Services Landscaping/Lawn Care Services 

Locksmith Mail Order Business Pest Control Service 

Plumbing Contractor Pool Installation Pool Service 

Roofing Contractor Security Services Septic/Sewer Services 

Siding Contractor Sprinkler Contractor Stucco Contractor 

Tree Surgery Window Washing Service Windshield Repair 
Any Professional 
Services Office 

 

(ex. Cleaning 
Service, Pool 

Installation, Pest 
Control Service, 

Landscape Service - 
all work shall be 
performed off 

premises) 

Contractors Office 
 

(ex. General 
Contractor, Roofing 

Contractor, Electrical 
Contractor - all work 
shall be performed 

off premises & 
material shall be 
delivered to the 

jobsite) 

Online Sales of 
Merchandise 

Office 
 

(no retail sales 
permitted from 

the home – 
customers are not 
permitted other 

than online) 

Mobile Food Vending 
Office 

 

(Vendor shall provide 
the location of an 

appropriate storage 
facility where the 

vending unit is kept 
when not in operation. 
Refer to Section 5.1.16 

for additional 
information. 

Mobile Vehicle Detailing 
Office 

 

(Mobile Vehicle Detailing 
shall remain mobile.  The 

home may not be 
advertised as a Mobile 

Detail location, nor shall any 
vehicles be brought back to 
the home for detailing. Refer 

to Section 5.1.6 for 
additional information  

 

134



                       DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
                       ITEM: VI.F. 
 
ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (F), amending Article 2 – Definitions, Article 5 – Specific 
Use Regulations, and Article 6 – Design Standards, of the City of Conway Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO), regarding requirements for corner lots and lots with double frontage.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Currently, a Double Front Yard is only discussed in the UDO for proposed lots (not existing legal non-
conforming lots).  The attached proposed amendments will better serve the residence and aid in their 
understanding of what the UDO defines as “Yards”. 
 
The sections / items proposed to be amended within the UDO include the following: 

• Section 2.2.1 - Definitions 
• Section 5.2.3 – Fences and Walls 
• Section 6.1.9 – Setbacks for Corner Lots 

 
CITY COUNCIL: 
This issue was first discussed with City Council during the workshop portion of their May 6th meeting. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the proposed amendment(s) at their July 11th 
meeting, and unanimously recommended approval of the amendment(s).  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendment(s), as recommended by Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (F) 
 

AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 2 – DEFINITIONS, ARTICLE 5 – SPECIFIC USE 
REGULATIONS AND ARTICLE 6 DESIGN STANDARDS, OF THE CITY OF CONWAY 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORIDNANCE (UDO) REGARDING CORNER LOTS AND LOTS 
WITH DOUBLE FRONTAGE. 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as Amended 

known as the “South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act 
of 1994” enabled the City of Conway to adopt the Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) of the City of Conway, South Carolina; and 

 

WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 13.1.7 of the UDO provides that the regulations, restrictions, and 
boundaries set forth in said Ordinance may from time be amended, supplemented, 
changed, or repealed in accordance with S.C. State Code §6-29-760; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is confusion explaining the requirements of corner front lots vs double front lots; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, the UDO does not currently address existing double front lots; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment would illustrate the difference between corner front lots vs 
double front lots; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the yard and setback requirements for corner front lots vs double front lots would be 
clearer and more precise; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment would allow staff to better assist the citizens of the City of 
Conway; Therefore, be it  

 

ORDAINED  by the City Council of the City of Conway, in Council duly assembled, that the UDO be 
amended as attached hereto; and be it further 

 

ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   This ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 

136



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled this   day of    , 2024. 
 
 

 

              

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor    Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

              

Amanda Butler, Council Member    William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 

 

              

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member    Beth Helms, Council Member 

 

 

              

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member   ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:   
 

Final Reading:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

137



Article 2 - Definitions 
 
2.2.1 General Definitions 
Yard: A required undeveloped area of a property that lies between the principal building or buildings and the 
nearest lot line.  

• Front Yard (1): A space extending the full width 
of the lot between any building and the front lot 
line. For corner lots, both yards lying between 
the primary structure and the intersecting streets 
shall be considered front yards; however, the 
front lot line shall be designated by the shorter of 
the two property lines adjacent to the street.  
The other front yard at the side property line 

adjacent to the street, shall be known as a 
Corner Front Yard (4). 

• Rear Yard (2): A space extending across the full 
width of the lot between the principal building 
and the rear lot line.  For corner lots, the rear 
yard shall be that yard on the opposite side of the building from the front lot line.  

• Side Yard (3): A space extending from the front yard to the rear yard between the principal building 
and the side lot line. 

• Double Front Yard (5):  A space extending across the full width of the lot between the rear of the 
principal building and the adjacent street.  Double Front Yards do not have a Rear Yard. (See Figure) 

 

Article 5 – Specific Use Regulations 

5.2.3 Fences & Walls 
A fence or wall, constructed of wood, vinyl, brick, stone, ornamental (iron / aluminum), chain link (where 
permitted) and other similar materials approved by the Zoning Administrator (or their designee), may 
project into or enclose required yards (but not over any boundary) in all zones providing that a maximum 
height, measured from the natural grade at which the fence or wall occurs, does not exceed the 
following: [ZA2018-10-15 (E); ZA2020-09-21 (B); ZA2021-07-19(C)] 

A. Commercial and Residential: 
1. Front Yards - 4 feet 
2. Double Front Yards – 4 feet 
3. Corner Front Yards - 6 feet (provided it meets a 10-foot setback from the property line) 
4. Side Yards - 6 feet 
5. Rear Yards - 8 feet 

B. Industrial Zoning Districts: 
1. Front Yards - 6 feet (not permitted in any required front setback) 
2. Double Front Yards – 6 feet (not permitted in any required double front yard setback) 
3. Corner Front Yards – 6 feet 
4. Side Yards - 10 feet 
5. Rear Yards - 10 feet 

 

 

138



Article 6 – Design Standards 
 
6.1.9 Side Yard Setbacks for Corner Front Lots and Double Front Lots    
 

In the case of any lot that adjoins two or more streets, yards abutting streets shall be treated as front yards.  The 
side yards with street frontage (corner front or double front) on corner lots shall be subject to the setback 
requirements set forth in Table 6.1.   
 

A space extending the full width of the lot between any building 
and the front lot line is the Front Yard (1). For Corner Lots, both yards 
lying between the primary structure and the intersecting streets shall 
be considered front yards; however, the front lot line shall be 
designated by the shorter of the two property lines adjacent to the 
street. The other front yard at the side property line adjacent to the 
street, shall be known as a Corner Front Yard (4). 
The space extending across the full width of the lot between the 
rear of the principal building and the adjacent street shall be known 
as a Double Front Yard (5). 

 
 
 
 

139



             DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
             ITEM: VI.G.  
 

ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #ZA2024-08-19 (G), to amend to Article 11 – Signage and Article 15 – 
Enforcement, of the City of Conway Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), regarding signs placed on 
public property and/or within public rights-of-way, as well as violations of the UDO and penalties for 
such violations.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In April of this year, Planning Commission recommended approval of a text amendment to Article 11 
of the UDO regarding signs located on public property and/or within public rights-of-way. Following 
that recommendation, staff held discussions with the Police Dept. and Administration about the proper 
methods of enforcement and issuing citations for violations of the proposed amendment; particularly 
with regard to the fine for the “civil infraction” as being the penalty for the violation. The rights of 
Planning/Zoning Officials comes from the Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act, which gives such 
officials the authority to issue a uniform ordinance summons for violations of the UDO only. There is 
no language within the UDO that gives Planning/Zoning Officials the authority to issue a Uniform 
Traffic Ticket/Summons, and because there is nothing in the City’s general code that authorizes 
Planning/Zoning Officials to issue such citations, only law enforcement officers are able to enforce the 
civil infraction penalty for the violation. Law enforcement officers have the unique authority to detain 
individuals while Planning/Zoning officials lack such authority. However, law enforcement officers are 
authorized to issue a uniform ordinance summons for violations of the UDO.  
 

Staff reached out to the Municipal Association for guidance on the matter, and it was recommended that 
the penalty for a civil infraction be adopted within the UDO in the appropriate section, specifying that 
violations of the UDO are a “misdemeanor” offense, except as otherwise specified as a civil infraction. 
These recommended amendments have been included in the proposed amendment to Article 15 of the 
UDO. Rather than moving the previous amendment to Article 11 of the UDO forward to Council for 
first reading by itself, staff felt that it would be best to keep the amendments to Article 11 and Article 15 
together for the sake of record-keeping and transparency.  
 
CITY COUNCIL: 
City Council held a workshop on this issue at their May 6, 2024 meeting.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION: 
Planning Commission held the required public hearing at their July 11th meeting. There was no public 
input. Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed amendments to Article 11 and 
Article 15, with the condition that Section 11.1.3, C be excluded from the amendment, which stated the 

140



following: 11.1.3, C. “The City of Conway reserves the right to exercise prosecutorial discretion when 
enforcing this Section and may choose to issue fines for only the most egregious violations.”  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of First Reading of the proposed amendments to Article 11 and Article 15, 
as amended and recommended by Planning Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

141



ORDINANCE #ZA2024-08-19 (G) 
 
AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 11 – SIGNAGE AND ARTICLE 15 – ENFORCEMENT, OF THE 

CITY OF CONWAY UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORIDNANCE (UDO) REGARDING SIGNS 
PLACED ON PUBLIC PROPERTY AND/OR WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AS 
WELL AS VIOLATION OF THE UDO AND PENALTIES FOR SUCH VIOLATIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Title 6, Chapter 29 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as Amended 

known as the “South Carolina Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act 
of 1994” enabled the City of Conway to adopt the Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) of the City of Conway, South Carolina; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 13.1.7 of the UDO provides that the regulations, restrictions, and 

boundaries set forth in said Ordinance may from time be amended, supplemented, 
changed, or repealed in accordance with S.C. State Code §6-29-760; and 

 
WHEREAS, The rights of Planning/Zoning Officials comes from the Comprehensive Planning 

Enabling Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the sign ordinance is being amended regarding signs in rights-of-ways or public property, 

to include a monetary civil infraction for removal of such signs; and 
 

WHEREAS, currently, there is nothing in the City’s general code or UDO that authorizes 
Planning/Zoning Officials to issue a Uniform Traffic Ticket/Summons; only a Uniform 
Ordinance Summons; and 

 
WHEREAS, after consulting the Municipal Association, Article 15 – Enforcement, of the UDO is also 

being amended in addition to Article 11 – Signage,  to ensure that Planning/Zoning 
officials are authorized to issue a civil infraction for signs in rights-of-ways versus an 
ordinance summons, and to add language authorizing the immediate disposal of any signs 
removed found to be in violation of this section.  

 

WHEREAS, Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the proposed amendments to 
the UDO and made a recommendation in favor of such amendment(s). Therefore, be it  

 

ORDAINED  by the City Council of the City of Conway, in Council duly assembled, that the UDO be 
amended as attached hereto; and be it further 

 
ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  This ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 

142



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled this   day of    , 2024. 
 
 

 

              

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor    Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

              

Amanda Butler, Council Member    William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 

 

              

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member    Beth Helms, Council Member 

 

 

              

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member   ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:   
 

Final Reading:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

143



ARTICLE 11. SIGNAGE 

Section 11.1 – General Provisions 

11.1.3 Removal of Signs Erected on Public Property and/or Rights-of-Way 
 

It shall be unlawful to erect, use or maintain a sign or sign structure on public property or public right-of-way without 
the approval of the City of Conway.  The City of Conway shall be authorized to remove such signs. 

A. Each sign or sign structure found to be in violation of this Section shall be considered a separate offense 
and punishable as a civil infraction with a fine of $50 per violation.  

B. The City of Conway shall be authorized to remove and immediately discard such signs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

144



Article 15. Enforcement 
 
Section 15.1 – Enforcement 
 
15.1.1 Violations 
If the Planning Director or other designated administrative officer shall find that any of the provisions of the City of 
Conway Unified Development Ordinance are being violated, he or she they shall notify in writing the owner or 
tenant of the property, indicating the nature of the violation and order the action necessary to correct it.  He or she 
They shall order discontinuance of illegal use of land, buildings, or structures; removal of illegal buildings, structures, 
additions, alterations, or structural changes; discontinuance of any illegal work being done; or shall take any other 
action authorized by the UDO to insure ensure compliance with, or to prevent violation of its provisions. 
 
15.1.2 Complaints Regarding Violations 
Whenever a violation of the UDO occurs, or is alleged to have occurred, any person may file verbal complaint. The 
complaint stating fully the causes and basis thereof, shall be filed with the Planning Director or other designated 
administrative officer. The Planning Director They shall record the complaint properly, investigate promptly, and 
take action thereon as provided by the UDO. 
 
15.1.3 Remedies 
A. It shall be unlawful to construct, reconstruct, alter, demolish, change the use of or occupy any land, 

building, or other structure without first obtaining the appropriate permit or permit approval. No permit shall 
be issued or approved unless the requirements of the UDO are complied with.  It shall be unlawful for other 
officials to issue any permit for the use of any land, building, or structure, or the construction, conversion, 
demolition, enlargement, movement, or structural alteration of a building or structure without the approval 
of the Planning Director or other designated administrative officer. A violation of any section of the UDO 
shall constitute a misdemeanor, except where specified throughout the UDO as being a civil infraction. In 
case a building, structure, or land is or is proposed to be used in violation of any requirements set forth 
herein, the Planning Director or other appropriate administrative officer, or adjacent or neighboring 
property owner who would be directly damaged by the violation may in addition to other remedies, 
institute injunction, mandate, or other appropriate action or proceeding to prevent the unlawful erection, 
construction, reconstruction, alteration, conversion, maintenance, or use, or to correct or abate the 
violation, or to prevent the occupancy of the building, structure, or land. Each day the unlawful erection, 
construction, reconstruction, alteration, conversion, maintenance, or use continues shall be considered a 
separate offense. 
 

B. In case a building, structure, or land is or is proposed to be used in violation of the UDO adopted pursuant 
to this chapter, the Planning Director or other designated administrative officer may in addition to other 
remedies issue and serve upon a person pursuing the activity or activities a stop order requiring that entity 
stop all activities in violation of the UDO. 

 
15.1.4 Penalties for Violation 
In case any building or structure is erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, repaired, converted, or 
maintained; or any structure or land is used in violation of this chapter; or there is a violation of any condition or 
requirement in connection with variances under the terms of the UDO, that violation shall constitute a misdemeanor, 
except where specified throughout the UDO as being a civil infraction. Violation of the UDO or failure to comply 
with any requirements stated herein shall be a misdemeanor, except where specified throughout the UDO as being 
a civil infraction. Each day such violation continues after due notice to discontinue such violation shall be 

145



considered a separate offense. The owner or tenant of any building, structure, premises, or part thereof, and/or any 
architect, surveyor, builder, engineer, contractor, agent, or other person who commits, participates in, assists in, or 
maintains that violation may each be found guilty of a separate offense and suffer the penalties herein provided. 
Nothing herein contained shall prevent the City of Conway from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to 
prevent or remedy any violation.   
 

A. Civil Infractions. Where penalties of the UDO are specified as being a civil infraction, such penalty for 
violation shall be fifty dollars ($50). 

 
15.1.5 Legal Status Provisions 
A. Conflict with Other Laws: Whenever the regulations of the UDO require a greater width or size of yards or 

require a greater percentage of lot to be left unoccupied or impose other more restrictive standards than 
are required in or under any other statue, the requirements of the UDO shall govern. Whenever the 
provisions of any other statute require more restrictive standards than are required by this Ordinance, the 
provisions of such statute shall govern. 
 

B. Severability: If any section or provision of the UDO should be declared invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court or competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the UDO as a whole or any 
part thereof which is not specifically declared to be invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

C. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed 
to the extent necessary to give the UDO full force and effect. 
 

D. Effective Date: The UDO shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its adoption by the 
City Council of the City of Conway. 

 
 

 

146



              DATE:  AUGUST 5, 2024 
             ITEM: VI.H.   
 
ISSUE: 
First Reading of Ordinance #2024-08-19 (H), to close and abandon an unimproved 25’ Private 
Alley and a 35’ Private Right-of-Way off of Highway 501. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
RDC Conway LLC owned by Mr. Mike Zeigler, seeks to have the 25’ Private Alley and the 35’ 
Private Right-of-Way shown on the following plat, declared closed in order to move forward with 
commercial development.  The property was annexed into the City of Conway per Ordinance 
ZA2023-08-21(A). 

City of Conway Code Section 1-3-23 requires the following: “Prior to the introduction of an 
ordinance…for the permanent closing of any abandoned street, the applicant for such an 
ordinance shall publish a notice in three (3) issues of a newspaper having general circulation in 
the city stating the nature of the franchise, license or right sought or a description of the street 
sought to be closed, and the date on which the application is to be presented to the council which 
shall be at least one (1) week after the last notice.” 

State Code Section 57-9-10 requires the following: “Any interested person, the State or any of its 
political subdivisions or agencies may petition a court of competent jurisdiction to abandon or 
close any street, road or highway whether opened or not. Prior to filing the petition, notice of 
intention to file shall be published once a week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper 
published in the county where such street, road or highway is situated. Notice also shall be sent by 
mail requiring a return receipt to the last known address of all abutting property owners whose 
property would be affected by any such change, and posted by the petitioning party along the 
street, road, or highway, subject to approval of the location of the posting by the governmental 
entity responsible for maintenance of the street, road, or highway. The Department of 
Transportation shall promulgate regulations which once effective will establish the minimum 
mandatory size, language, and specific positioning of signs pursuant to this section.” 

The request will comply with all City and State advertising, notice, and signage requirements.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Approve first reading of the road closure request. 
 

147



ORDINANCE #2024-08-19 (H) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO CLOSE AND ABANDON AN UNIMPROVED 25’ PRIVATE 
ALLEY AND A 35’ PRIVATE RIGHT-OF-WAY. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 5-27-150 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, grants 

authority to a municipal governing body to close and abandon public streets for the 
improvement and convenience of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted requesting the permanent closing of an unimproved 
private alley and right-of-way across the property of RDC Conway LLC, owned by 
Mr. Mike Zeigler as indicated on the attached reference map; and 

 

WHEREAS, the petitioners have provided the required public notice of this request per City of 
Conway General Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the subject unimproved private alley and right-of way 
are not needed for public convenience, and do not provide essential access to any 
private property. Therefore, be it 

 
 

ORDAINED  by the City Council of the City of Conway, in Council duly assembled, that the 
unimproved private alley and right-of-way shall both be closed and abandoned 
pursuant to Section 5-27-150 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina and Section 
1-2-23 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Conway and that the official map 
of the City of Conway shall be amended accordingly, and be it further 

 

ORDAINED, that possession of the abandoned private alley and right-of-way shall become vested 
in the owner’s properties upon the filing of a recombination plat. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   This ordinance shall become effective upon final reading. 

148



RATIFIED BY CITY COUNCIL, duly assembled this   day of    , 2024. 
 
 

 

               

Barbara Jo Blain, Mayor     Larry A. White, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

               

Amanda Butler, Council Member    William M. Goldfinch IV, Council Member 

 

 

               

Julie Ann Hardwick, Council Member    Beth Helms, Council Member 

 

 

               

Justin D. Jordan, Council Member   ATTEST: Alicia Shelley, City Clerk 

First Reading:   
 

Final Reading:   

 
 

149



CHURCH ST

CAROLYN ST CA
MEL

OT S
TKIN

G S
T

RIC
HA

RD
SO

N S
T

AN
DE

RS
ON S

T

LUNDY AVEHWY 501 VIL
LA

GE
 ST

MILL
 PO

ND
 RD

CHURCH ST

Date: 1/24/2024  Time: 10:07:25 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS\MEETINGS\2024\2.22.24\IV.B - Ziegler Tracts\GIS\ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR ZIEGLER TRACTS.mxd

PIN #: 338-09-02-0007 THRU 338-09-02-0011 &
338-09-02-0014
ZIEGLER TRACTS³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

Legend
PARCELS

PIN #: 338-09-02-0008

PIN #: 338-09-02-0009

PIN #: 338-09-02-0007

PIN #: 338-09-02-0010

PIN #: 338-09-02-0011

PIN #: 338-09-02-0014PIN #: 338-09-02-0014

150



CFA

HC
HC

HC

SF 20
SF 20 SF 20

SF 20

HC

SF 20

SF 20

SF 20

HC

SF 20
SF 10

SF 20

HC

SF 20

SF 20

CHURCH ST

MILL
 PO

ND
 RD

KIN
G S

T

HWY 501

CAROLYN ST

VIL
LA

GE
 ST

LOCHWOOD LN

LUNDY AVE

KIRKLAND DR

CA
MEL

OT S
T

ME
DL

EN
 PK

WY

EL
KF

OR
D 

DR

AN
DE

RS
ON

 ST

JENKINS FIELD RD

PA
NT

HE
ON

 DR

MO
NT

I D
R

W HWY 501

HWY 501

CHURCH ST

Date: 1/24/2024  Time: 10:35:24 AM  Path: \\Coc-srv2\4310\BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS\MEETINGS\2024\2.22.24\IV.B - Ziegler Tracts\GIS\ZONING MAP FOR ZIEGLER TRACTS.mxd

PIN #: 338-09-02-0007 THRU 338-09-02-0011 &
338-09-02-0014
ZIEGLER TRACTS³

Disclaimer: This map is a 
graphic representation
only. It is NOT a survey.
All efforts have been
made to ensure its accuracy.
However, the City of Conway
disclaims all responsibility &
liability for the use of this map.

(843) 488-9888 ph (843) 488-9890 fax

2940 JERRY BARNHILL BLVD - CONWAY, SC 29527

CONWAY ZONING
RA

RR

R

R1

R2

R3

R4

P

IN

NC

HC

CC

CBD

LI

HI

FA

CP

WRD1

WRD2

PD

MU

MM

IC

COUNTY ZONING

PARCELS

XX

PIN #: 338-09-02-0008

PIN #: 338-09-02-0009

PIN #: 338-09-02-0007

PIN #: 338-09-02-0010
PIN #: 338-09-02-0011

PIN #: 338-09-02-0007PIN #: 338-09-02-0014

151



S

46.0'

72
.1

'

66
.1

'

125.0'

24.6'

28
.8

'

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OH
P

OH
P

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

P

CO

Y

S

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

Y

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

S T

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

W

S

OHP

PALMETTO
CORP

CO

a/c

E

P

152



S

SS

SS

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

PALMETTO
CORP

153



 
 
DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024 
ITEM: VII.A. 

 
   
 
ISSUE:  
 
Asphalt - Resurfacing, Milling, In-depth Patching, New Parking Lot/Road Grading and 
Paving, Striping, Stop Bars and Patching on City Streets Contract 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The contract for asphalt resurfacing, milling, in-depth patching, parking lot/road grading 
and paving, striping, stop bars and patching on City streets has expired. This contract is 
primarily used for all asphalt related task.  The City sent out a Request for Proposals for a 
one year contract (August 16, 2024 to August 16, 2025). Bid opening was July 3, 2024 
and two bids were received from King Asphalt and Palmetto Corp of Conway.  Bids 
received are as follows: 
 
Palmetto Corp of Conway - $1,247,166.25 
 
King Asphalt - $897,770.00 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends that City Council award the bid to the lowest bidder, King Asphalt. 
 

 

 

154

https://www.cityofconway.com/Asphalt%20RFP%202021%20(003).pdf
https://www.cityofconway.com/Asphalt%20RFP%202021%20(003).pdf


155



156



157



158



DATE: AUGUST 5, 2024                               
ITEM: VII.B.   

 

ISSUE:   

Special event request:   Rivertown Reindeer Run, December 7, 2024 – Conway Rotary Club  

BACKGROUND:   

Shannon Wall, of the Conway Rotary Club has submitted a special event permit application for 
the annual Rivertown Reindeer Run planned for Saturday, December 7, 2024 from 7 a.m. to 11 
a.m.  This is a 5K family-friendly race and children’s fun run. They anticipate approximately 200-
300 participants. The race is a fundraiser for the Conway Rotary Club.  

Conway Rotary has requested to use their own route (see attached map of race route) for the 5k 
and 1 mile run and not the standard route that has been approved by City council. 

Police Department and Fire Department personnel will provide assistance for this event.  The City 
of Conway has always helped with this event, and the cost of services provided can be absorbed 
through its operating budget. The Rotary Club will have volunteers available to help City 
personnel along the race route and for cleanup.  In addition to the restroom facilities at the marina 
park, they will provide two porta-johns in the marina parking lot.  

The applicant has requested road blockades and permission to erect multiple tents in different 
locations during the event (see attached map of race route).  Also requested is assistance with 
traffic control, standby medical assistance, use of three roll-out carts, and use of City parking by 
event participants.   

The City will notify all residents along the race route in order to provide information about the 
event using hangers for trash receptacles. The race route will be closed for one hour for the runners 
to compete; however, local traffic will be allowed to utilize the streets when there is adequate 
spacing between race participants so that safety will not be jeopardized. Walkers, etc., will use the 
sidewalks and obey normal traffic regulations along the route.  Standby medical assistance will be 
provided by on-duty Fire Department personnel.    

RECOMMENDATION:  

Council to provide guidance to staff.  

159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175


	2.john doctor rd combined
	!1st rdg. - Issue paper_John Doctor Rd & Hwy 905 (7.15.24)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
	ZONING MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR JOHN DOCTOR RD & HWY 905
	Service Area Map
	survey of property
	Sheets and Views
	SH 1


	APP_John Doctor Road_P24-0159 (6.20.24)

	3.FY 2024 Rollback Issue Paper &  Ordinance
	4.1707 9th Ave-1
	DATE: JULY 15, 2024
	ITEM: VII.E.
	ISSUE:
	BACKGROUND:

	5.loader and excavator purchase
	2024 Issue - Loader and Excavator
	City of Conway 85P
	Conway 544 revised

	6.halloween golf cart and CCU parade combined
	Halloween Golf Cart and CCU Homecoming Parade 2024
	SKM_C450i24013006111

	7.police vehicles combined
	Issue Paper 8 vehicle purchase July 2024
	Invoice SUV
	Invoice TRUCK

	8.FY 24-25 Meters
	9.IT vehicle combined
	IT Technician Vehicle
	City of Conway 2024 Ford Explorer Base RWD Estimate_1544_2024-09-20 (002)

	10.wild wing ph 5a combined
	!CC Issue Paper - Wild Wing Plantation Ph. 5A - roads and drainage dedication
	Wild Wing Plantation Phase 5 Dedication Documents 7-25-24 comp.

	11.City Council Meeting Minutes 7.15.2024
	12.Longevity issue
	13.2493 E hwy 501 combined
	!1st reading - 2493 Hwy 501 anex & rez  (8.5.24 CC)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES
	ZONING MAP WITH AERIAL FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES
	ZONING MAP WITHOUT AERIAL FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 2493 E HWY 501 CLAYTON HOMES
	APP_2493 HWY 501_P24-0155 (6.18.24)

	14.420 maplewood circle combinedpdf
	!1st Reading_CC Issue Paper - 420 Maplewood Circle (R-1 annexation)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
	ZONING MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 420 MAPLEWOOD CIR
	APP_420 Maplewood Cir_P24-0172 (7.3.24)

	15.4221 siwel rd combined
	!1st Reading_CC Issue Paper - 4221 Siwel Road (R-1 annexation)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD
	ZONING MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 4221 SIWEL RD
	Restrictive Covenants
	APP_4221 Siwel Road_P24-0180 (7.16.24)

	16.5205 columbia st combined
	!1st Reading_CC Issue Paper - 5205 Columbia Street (R-1 annexation)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST
	ZOOMED OUT AERIAL MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST
	ZONING MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST
	FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST
	FLOOD ZONE MAP FOR 5205 COLUMBIA ST
	APP_5205 Columbia Street_P24-0171 (7.2.24)

	17.1st rdg. - Mobile Auto Detailing & Car Wash Facilities (TxtAmend)-(8.5.24 CC mtg)
	18.1st rdg. - TA_Corner Lots & Double Front Lots
	19.1st rdg. - issue paper_TA signs in ROWs & penalties for violation
	20.closure of alley and ROW off 501
	!1st rdg. - ROW-Alley Abandonment (Zeigler Project)-(8.5.24 CC mtg)
	ZOOMED IN AERIAL MAP FOR ZIEGLER TRACTS
	ZONING MAP FOR ZIEGLER TRACTS
	Minor Plat (8.5x11)-2pages

	21.asphalt bid combined
	20224 Issue Resurfacing
	SKM_C250i24073105290

	22.reindeer run combined
	Rivertown Reindeer Run 24
	SKM_C450i24013006100




